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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED oiSwAL

NOTICE OF THE MEETING )

Nolce ia hereby ghvan that the Twenty Second Annual 9 o the Membars of Gswal Chami & Fertilizars Limited will be hald on Wadnasday tho 2667 August, Zmaatﬁ 20
a.m. at tha Ragisterad Oflice of the Company at Village Piprola, Julalahud Aoad, Shahjahanpur — 242 001 {UL.P.) Ie ransaci the tollowing business :

QRDINARY DUSINESS:
1. Toracolva, consider and adopi the Balarce Sheot as at 3151 March, 2004 and Profil & Loss Acoount for the year ended on that date and Ine Birectors’ and the Audilors Roports tharoon.
2 T appoint a Dirsctor in place of Shri Ranjan Shanma wha totires by rolation and baing aligible o i for re-

a Te appaint & Girector in placa pf Shrt P. Kumar wha retires by rotation and baing #ligibla olfers himsall lof re-appoiniment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS :
4 To considar and. if thought fil, to pass with or wilhaut madificationis}, the following resclution as an Qrdinary Resolution :-

"AESOLYED THAT M/s T.A Chadha & Co., ChurtmadAcauumnm; bu and are heraby appointed as Auditors of the Campany 0 hoid ofiice from the conclusion of this Annual General
Mueating until the conclusion af tha naxt Aamua’ Gy may b fizad by the Board in place of Mis Price Watprhowss, Chansred Accountanis, whe and
reliring as Audilors of Lhe Company at tha conclusion of this Annual Ganeral Mesting and have gxprassed theit inability to continue tharkalts: ~

By Gier ot the Board
For OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILTZERS LIMITED

Placa: New Delhi Sc¥-
Date : 30th July, 2004 (H. K. GUPTA}

COMPANY SECRETARY
NOYES

1. AMEMBER ENTITLED TQ ATTEND AND YOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELFHERSELF AND THAT
THE PROXY NEED NQT BE AMEMBER OF THE COMPANY, THE PROXY IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE SHOULD BE DEPOSITED AT THE REGISTERED OFFICE OF THE
COMPANY, DULY STAMPED ANG SIGNED, NOT LESS THAN 48 HOURS BEFORE THE COMMENZEMENT OF THE MEETING

2 The Regiatar of membera arkt the Share Transfar Books of tha Company shall ramain closad lrom 23rd Augusl. 2004 to 25ih Augusi 2004 (both days inclushva).

a An Explangiory Slatsmant pursuani to Section 173 [2) of the Companies Act, 1958 in raspact of fiem No. 4 is onclosed harewlth and forms part of this Nolico.

4 = i in Qiving in respect ol th heid by tham can do 80 by ebiaining nominatkon lomms fram tha Company.

LS e y's Equity Shares udsoxily irnded In Demat Farm anc tharstora sharaholders are raqnsledtn got their shares der fali opaning 1t with & Dep Y
Pamcnpam through "Nati ities Deposiiony Lid" or Caniral Depository Services Limited.

L3 Sharahomrs are roquosled to note that if Domat Requesi Forms. (DRF] and share cortificates wic. are nol racoived fom their DPs. by the Company within a period of 30 days from the
1ot the DAN for g ign, the DRN will ba raatad a: wallgg, Upon rejection/cancelialion ol the DRN, a Iresh DRF has to be forwardod miongwith
mm“n.rmwmommmcm

7. Puyrsuar o the provisions of Section 2054 of the Companies Act, 1856, as amendad, dividend which remins unpaid or unclaimed lor a ponod af 7 years will ba transtemed o the imvestar
Education and Protection Fund of Ihe Cerral Govemment. Sharsholders whva hava not ancashed tha dividend wamams so ar for Ihe financia! yoar enced 315t March, 1938 aro raguestod
10 end [ oLdated dividkind warmants for avettiation i the Company.

a Tha Register of Diractors' sharehalding In the Company shall remain open for i ion Io tha A ang Dabent of the Company during 10.00 4.m. 1o 12.00 noGn on each
working day beginning with 14 days pricr to the date of snnual general maeting and ending 3 days atiar the date 0l its canciusion at the Ragistered Office of the Company.

a Tha Invastors may send the d for transter ol olhar redaling lo sharea directly Lo the segistrar and share ransfar agent ol !mgxnpmyw
$ Skyline Financial Sanvicas Pyt Lid. 123, Vinobapuri Lajpat Nagar-1i, New Delhi 110024

0. & nolséng shares inthe. a0 pquBsted loimimple all changes with raspect 1o teir Bank Dwtails. Mandate, Power of Allomay or addreas for corraspondance

{0 their respaciive Deposhiony Par!.l:plm(DP] Thaese changas will be Aulomatically reflscied in Ihe Company's racords through Electronic Conneciivity with NSDUCDSL.
1 In Bl cormaspondenca with the Company, membars are requestod to quots their account Helio numbers and in case their shnres arg hokd in the amalerialized fom. Uhay Must quota Tholr
liant 10 number and their DP JD number.
AS REQUIRED UDNER CLAUSE 49 (i) OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT GIVEN BELOW ARE THE DETAILS OF THE DIRECTORS WHO ARE RETIFING BY ROTATION AND ARE
ELIGIBLE FOR HE-APPOINTMENT,

Shi Rranjan Sharma ks a Fatiow Membar of tha Institwie of Company Secrelaries of India 25 well as the Institule of Gost and Warks Accounts of fngia and alsa a Law Gradeata, Ha s laaking
after Financial end Commercial Activities of the Gompany for the Last 14 years, Shri Ranjan Shamia is having vast axperiance and has mare vifuably contribution inthe grawth of the Compary.
Hea nota Dirgctor inany other body corporate. Heis a member ot {) Share Transtar Commitiae and (i) Investor Griovance Committas o your company.

Shel P Kurnar retired as Chiat Genaral Manager of IDBY. He has worked with HBIandIDBlloromSQynals invanious Ha was h Appraisal,
and developmon activites, He is a Ciracior, membar of Auci Commitiog ar oldars in anather pany HuusamnmolAudlCorm!nmdmcmww

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 173 (2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 FORMING PAAT OF THE NOTICE IN RESPECT OF ITEM NO 4 OF THE NOTICE.
ITEMNO.4

M, Prica Walwrhousa, Chanered Accouniants, Naw Do, the Auditors of the Company wha ara rstiring aka he condlusion of this Annual Genoral Meeting have sent thair [ofter sinting that
ety da ol wish b be considered for regppolntimant 24 Stansory Auditors lor the financiab year snding March 31, 2005, Ammnyy M/s TR, Chadha & Co., Chanered Accountarts, o reputed
mtmdmmmmmnnummdmoamwm.-w 30N of this Anrwal 1 g till the conciusion of nexl Annual Gengral Mesling and have submittad
Aletter pursusint to saction 224( 18} confirming thal thair appointment as Audilors, if made, will ba within the limit specifisd undor saction 224 [1B) of the Companies AGH, 1958, As tha retiing
Audilors are ot willing 10 be re-appointed in fr Annual General Macting, this ilem is being Laken a¥ spocial business pursuant o section 225 ol the Companios Acl, 1956,

The Board reconmands this iksohion for approvel of the shareholders, Nona of tha Diregtors is or din this

By Order of the Board
For OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Place : Mgw Dathi . {H. K. GUPTA}
Daty . 3Ky, 2004 COMPANY SECRETARY
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DIR?TORS‘ REPORT
The Members

Your Direciors present the Twanty Second Annual Asperl along with Audited Statement of Accounts

for ihe Financial year ended 31st March, 2004,

FINANCIAL RESULTS {Rs.in Lacs)

2003-2004 2002-2003
Gross Profit(Loss) before deprecialion and tax {10660) (15839)
Depreciation {17545) (18843}
Prolit/{Loss) bafore Tax {28235) (34682)
Dalarred Tax Credit {written coff)}/provided {102) 12635
ProtriLeas) after Deferred Tanation (2B337) {22047
Add : Balance brought forward from last year (28500) {6453)
Balgnce In Profit & Loss Account (56837} {28500)

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS
UREA DIVIfoON .
Tha warking 6f Urea Division has <esutied into
a cash profit of Rs.192.72 Crs. and net profit
of R5.139.58 Crs. during the year undar raview
as agsainsi cash  profit of A5, 119.05 Crs. and
net profit of Rs,55.16 Crs. respactively during
the previous year. The incrgasa in profil in
Uraa Division was mainly attributatle io the
following factors:
+ Incraase in production from 8.14 lacs MT to
8.58 lac MT.
Incraase in sales from 7.78 lac MT 10 9.01
|ac MT and conseguant reduction in ¢losing
stocks.
Raduciion in sglling expanses from Rs.43.44
Crores 10 As.23.17 Creres daspite higher
volumea of sales.

Racovery of escalatien claim on inputs for

tha previous year amgunling lo A$.29.34

Crores.

Reduction in interest on term loans from

R5.27.53 Crores to Rs.10.61 Crores.
DAP DIVISION
Ouring the year under raview the Di-Ammonium
Phosphalie (DAP) Plani remained shuldown till
Nov. 2088 ue 1o high level of invantory o
finistisd goods. Therelore, the plant produced
only 3.31 {ac MT of DAP/NP as agains1 7.17 lac
MT ot DAP duting the provious yeas. The
shuldown of the plam and consequent lower
production and saies has resulled into a cash
losa of Ks.299.71 Crs. during the year as
against a cash loss of Rs.274.44 Crs. during
the previous year. The net loss after
depraciation for the year is Rs.418.16 Crs. as
againsl Rs.393.44 Crs. during the previoys year.
OVERALL

The satasAurngves was lowar at R 1230.74
Crares as compared to Rs, 1257.25 Crores
during previcus year. The yaar ended with a net
loss of Rs.283.37 Crores as against the nat
loss of A5.346.82 Crores during previgus year.
FUTURE PLANS

Plans are uwnder consideration 10 maximize
production of Lrea at the Shahjahanpur plant
by carmying cut & de-boltlenacking exergise and
instaltation of batanging aguip b
raquired. Constant efforts are also being made
to reduce enorgy consumption levels 5o &s o
further Improve the profitability of Urea
opergtions.

In the DAP plani &t Paradeap, the shutdown
pericd wag utllizeg o carry out the required

maodifications in tha Sulphuric Acid Plant 50 as
to improve the capacity atilization lovels.
Efforts are sls¢ being made 1o improve the
recavery ol phosphoric acid from rock
phosphate 50 as to reduce the overall raw
material costs. The management is confideni
that given favourable demand scenantd tor
phesphatic feriilizers in the couniry, the
operations at Paradeep will Soon become
prafilable.

DIVIDEND

In view of Net Loss. the Direclors do not
recommend any dividend for the year,

RIRECTORS

Shri Ranjan Sharma and Shyi P Kumeas who retice
by rotation and being eligibte offer Ihemselves
for re-appointmeni.

AUDITORS.

M/s Prica Walerhouse, Chariered Accountants,
who are holding office as Auditors of the
COMPanY uplo ik contlusion of the ensuing
Annual Ganeral Meeting have exprassed their
inabifity to continue thereaftar.

It is proposed to appoint Mis T.R.Chadha &
Cao., Charterad Accouniants as Auditors in place
of M/s Price Watarhouse to nold office from
the conciusion of ensuing Annual General
Maaling titl the conclusion of the nex1 Annual
Ganaral Meeting. A consent {attar from M/s T,
R. Chadha & Co. has bean recelved to the
gffect that their appointment as Auditars, i
made, inthe Annual General Mesting shall bein
accardance with the limits spacified in section
224 (18} of the Companies Act, 1956

AUDITORS' REPORT

The Auditors' report on audited actbunis for the
year 2003-04 contains gualifications regarding
disputed income tax demands, impert pass fag
on industrial alcohol, subsidy ratund dus to
downward revision of retention price for earlier
yaars which has been staysd by Hon'ole Dalhi
High Ceurt, non provision of doubtiul debts
and epproval of Central Govt. for paymant of
mapagerial remuneration.

The management is of the view that nacessary
adjustment in respect of disputed income tax
deimand and import pass fee will be mada in the
accgunts as and when the said liabiiities
crystallize. Provision for subsidy rafundable
will be made as and when the matter pending
with Hon'ole Oelhi High Court is finaliy decided.
The management is canfident that alt debtors
are fully realizable, Approval of Central Gowt,
for payment of managerial ramuneration has
heen sought, -

3

FIXED DEPOSITS

The Gompany has not invited any fixed depesils
from the public during tha yaar under repan.
PARTICULARS OF ENERGY CONSERVATION
The information required under Rule 11 of the
Companies {Disclosure ol particulars in the
Repon of the Board of Directors) Hules, 1588
relating to the conservation of energy and
technalegy absomiion &re given inihe AnReure-
| forming part of the Repon,

INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS

The Directors are happy ta state that relations
hetween the Company and i1s employaas
ramained cordial throughout the year, Tha
Direclors express their appreciation for the
services rendered by the employees of the
Company at various leveis.

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES

Particulars of Employaes in accordance with
the provisions of Section 217 (2A} of the
Companies Act, 1956, read with the Companies
(Paniiculars of employees) Rules, 1975 as
amended are given in the Annexura-ll farming
par of this raporn.

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

tn accordance with the provisions of Section

217 (2AA) of the Companias Act, 1956, your

Directors stata :

) That in the preparation of the Annual
Accounts, lhe applicable accounting
standards have Been followad along with
prope: explanation in case of matarial
departures :

iy ~ That the Directors have salacted such
accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgemsnts and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent
50 as o give a true and fair view ol the
state of aitairs ¢ the Company as at
J1* March, 2004 and of the profitloss of
the company for the year ended on 31%
Maich, 2004,

iy  That the Directors have taken proper and
sufficient care for the maintenance of
adeguale  actbuniing  recoqds in
accordance with the provisions of this Act
for safeguarding the assets of your
Company and lof praventing and getecting
traud and ather iregularitiss.

iv)  Thal the Directors have prepared ihe
annual SCCounis 0N & QDING tonTem
basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Pursuant to Clause 48 of the fisling agreemant.
Corporate Gevemance Report and Management
Discussion and Apalysis are enciosed as
Anmewures — W & 1V,
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Board of Directors wishas 1o thank various
agencies of Central and State Governments,
Financia! Institutions and the BanXks for
extending their co-operation and continued
5upport 1 the Gompany,

For & on behalf of the Board.

Place © New Delhi {ABHEY QISWAL)
Date : 30th July, 2004 CHAIRMAN
& MANAGING DIRECTOR
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Annexure - |
INFORMATION AS PEA SECTION 217{1) (E) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956, AEAD WITH COMPANIES (D¥SCLOSURE OF PARTICULARS tN THE REPORT OF Hﬂkﬂ oF
DIRECTORS) RULES, 1988 AND FORMING PART OF THE DIRECTORS' REPORY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31%" MARCH, 2064, =

1 CONSERVATION OF ENERGY

(1)  Entriy Conservation Measures Taken :Tha Company has beeh conlinuously makmg aifarts Inough its dedicated leam of Enginenrs to achieve high productivity and onstroam
efficioncy. Tha Company's Tectinicat Department continuously manitars energy constmptian i the plants and kines Conaclive Moasures 1or conserving ansrgy.

(b}  Additional Investments ond proposals:

There is no majov i ion of anergy during the year. However, some inhouse modilications are being catried out in he plants which will resutt
in consarvation of energy,
FORM-A
Disclosura of particulars with respact to Conservation of Energy:
ffigsn AND FUEL CONSUMPTION Unit 2003-04 2002-03
Purchased
Unitg MWH 12107 8104
Tokal Amount Rs./Laca 817 55 208143
Ratenit Rs./CWH 6753 548

(b) Own Generation
() Th Gas Turbine

Quanhty (Grnss} MWwH 122407 BT
Units Par SMol Gag KWH/SM? 698 J 458
CosiUnit Ay KwH [+ QB3
(i) Through Yasta hoat boiler slearn generaled
from sulphur plant in DAP Unit
Units KWH 124050 200259
2) Fual Consumption
(a)  Noturai Gas {Ammonia-fue), Power & Steam)
Quanuy D0OSM? tieg 150330
Tolal Cost Rs./Lacs. 4572 77 7768 08
Ratasinit Rs /0G0SM 411433 4081.37
(b} Maphtha {Stexm and Ammonla ~ Fusl
} Hmpnt { } AT 114101
Total Cost Rsflacs 17 6560.57
Cosyunit Rs./MT 15673 15198.56
{c} Furnaca Oll
Quantity K.Litre pas) 9143
Total Cost AsLacs 334,68 114821
CosiUnit Rs.Lire 123 257
(d} Coar
Curantity MT 131615
Ti Rsflacs 1361.22 1130.71
Costni Fs./MT a56.10
{#) H5.D
P Gty K 1102 126238
Total Cost RsfLacs 211.37 2041
Castnil AsLilre 1918 1709
CONSUMPTION PER UNIT OF PRCDUCTION
I Urean
R H.5D. Lilre/MT 0.04 o
Naturat Gas (Ammonia-Fuel, Powor & Steam) SMIMT 12855 348
Napiha (Sloatn and Ammaonia—Fusl) Kgs/MT 133,02 5107
] DAR
) Elociy KWHIMT 41350 T
. Fumaca Qil Litre/MT T 1275
HSD LitraMT 323 . 178
Coal KM 439.58 *&w__
B TECHNOLOGY AESORPTION £0RMR -
1 Resaarch & Developmant (R&D)
Specilic Arsas in which R & D coefied oul by Iha Campany In Phosphoric Acid Plani at Pamdaep, A siudy has on Yam Fanize: T oy
1o produce phospharic ackq wilh 42% P,0, which can ba Usod dirgeify 0r production of DAF,
Undr this 16chnalogy, 148 vea of evaporalors wil a0l ba 1oquired which wil tava the consumetion
of sleam.

[ -] Bansfits derivod a3 & reyul of the above RAD Phosphoric acid having 42% P, 0, coniging laxs soids and redyuced amount of iren oxiae which
i3 suitabie 1or being dirschy uadalor production of DAP. Under Ihis procass, Iho Use of sloam
for congentrating wedh &Cid lo oirong ackd in proguction of DAP is avtided.

i Fulurs Plan 4 Agtion Tne company will continug ils afforls 1o minimize Ihe snergy consumplion ond Improve Lhe
afficianey ol the plants in all aseas.

fiol Expenditure an RED Mo sgparaie imeorg lor AAD gxpanditure i kopt as He cevolopmant work i conkinupusty
unddriaken by the Technicul Saricas Gogtt.

2. Technology i and 3

@ Etfons, in brist maoa iowards ption, ian and i Al Uraa Plant. the tachnology of ammonia & ursa mamutaciure has boon compinlcly sbzoroed

and nacassary ions and havs by kel 10 oK i mprove

procass efticiancy and productivity,
[4] Baongtits dertvad #5 5 1esult of the above affona e.g, product improvement, .
prochict davelopmunt, immport subshiytion &ic. Al Phasphatic Farilizar Plant the technology provided by Lurgl Malailurgia of Germany lot
Sulphuiric Acid Plant and  Jacobs Engineering ol USA for Phocpharic Agid Plant havo bear
Iully ebsorbed.
c) Dotails of ischnology imparted during Lhe fast 5 years.
© o Tochnulw:'gy 9 v Tha Phosphalic Fesilizer Plant at Paraceap Is based on technology prosided by W Lurgl
Motnllurgie, Garmany for Sutphuric Ackd Plant and /s Jacobs Engingsring, USA for the
Phosphanic Aciy and Gramuation Plont,

W Yasratimpon The Planl hos boan commissioned in Apri, 2001,
@iy Has ischnology bean hully Bbsorbed Thet iechnology has bean lulty absorbed
M 1 nol tully abscrbed, Areas whara this has nol takan place,
soasons ihereat and filurs ntan o aclion Nat Applicatia Ra. i Lacs
W FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNING AND DUTGO: 200304 200200
|a]  Tote toreign exchanga ussd and samed 33785.83 A1628.91
Nit Hit
Usadd
Egmed For and on bohpH of the Board
iy Oewnl

Place : New Dajhi

Dals ; 30" .July, 2004 Chalrmen & Managing Girecior
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i JEXURE TQ DIRECTORS® REPORT Annaxure - Il

PAATIEULARS OF EMPLOYEES A3 REGUINED UNDER SUB-SECTIGN (24) OF SECTIGN 217 OF COMPANIES AGT, 1638, READ WITH COMPANIES {(PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES)
PULES, 1975 AND FORMIRG PART CF THE DIRECTORE' REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 15T MARGH, 2004
SNO., NAME DESHGNATION AGE QUALIFICATION REMUNERATION OATE OF EXPERIENGE LAST EMPLOYMENT
{ris AMOUNT (RS.) COMMENCEMENT 'n) HELD &
CF EMPLOYMENT DESIGNATION
1 Brama Anil Oirector 54 B.Com an72400- 01.07.2000 33 Qirector,
Oswal Apro Mills Lia,
2 Oswal 4K, Chaimman 3 Managing 55 B8.Cam 3525099(- 01.08.15D5 34 Managing Director,
Director Owwal Agro Furane Lid,
3 Sharma Renjan  Director-Finance 45 B.Com, FICWA, 8724000 01.05.1580 ze Criaf Exagutive,
FCS, LLa - Criwal Ag Furane Lid.
(i} Remuraralion ¢ shown avova includes Salacy, Medica! rei Légve Travel Assi Company's C ion to Provident Fund & monetary valus ol Peiguisiles.

(7 AN the above ampicysss re whot Ume Ditactors and nan of them is reisied 19 e4ch olhar.
{il) AN wppointments are contraciual,

AUDITGRS' CERTIFICATE ON COMPUANCE WITH THE CONDNTIONS OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE UNDEA CLAUSE 48 OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT(S)

L
inprvr,
Oswat & Fortilizers Limited,

Wa have rgvigwod 1e L of Comx
mafninined by the Company, fumished le us for our

] oy Oswal Chemicals & Fertilizors Limitad during e yoar onded March 31, 2004, with the redevani reconds 2nd documgnty
iaw and tha repor on Corporale Govarnanga as approved by tha Board of Directors

Tha ol o corporata Is Ihe i of tha Our ination was limdted 1o Aerw of procadures and ImplemARtaton theroot, adopted by tha
Company lor enguring the eltha ions of G 10 Governance, It is noither an audil not an expresskon of opinion on the financlal statamants of the Company.

We furiher slals that such compiiance is neither an assurance as (o the future viability of tha Gempany nar tha aflickncy or atiectivenass with which the managamenl has tondutiad the aliairs
ol tha Compeny.

O tha basia of our review 915 he ion and v o us, the ol Corporats Gi A% $lip, in Clausn 49 ol the Lsting agreemant(s) with tha stock
axchangs (#) have, subject lo llama mentioned in garagraphs | below: -

[ul} Tho minutes of dudil commiltas do not reveal revlew baing pecomard Il any, of the Company's linanclel and risk managamenl policies by audit commlties 2nd furthar that the Chirman of
the audkt cormilies has not allandad the annual gandral moating hald on Seprambar 13, 2003

baan camplied with in all malarial respects by the Company and thal 32 invasior grievancas ara pending or & pariod sxceoding ona manth against ihe Company a3 cartiflad by Lhe shara ranster
ayant ol the Company.

Anupam Dhawan
Partriar
Meomborzhip Mo, F-084451
For ! on behatf of
Prica Watorhouse
Placs @ NowDemni Chanared Accountanls
Cate i July 30, 2004
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT Annexure - I
A datalied raport on Corporate Govormanca s pa: the format prascribed by SEBI & incomorated In Clauso 49 of the Listing Agreement is given hera below :
1. COMPANY'S PHILOSOPHY ON CODE OF CORPGRATE GOVERNANCE
Tho Company baliovesin faflowing scund corporate practices 1o énsurs thal the dealings of the company with all s siakeholders ore diracied 1o aciieve its leng lerm corpornta goals.

Thupmmmymll slriva not only 1o meet Lhe slatutory requiremonts of tha Carporats Govemnancs tods ir y SEBland ms i inClause 49 of the Listing Agreement
with Ign Stock Exchanges but to g6 beyond tham and follow systems and p inline with the globa) trands.
Company continues o tollaw procedures and practice in conformily wilh the code ol Carporate G hril inthe Listing Ag

2 BOARD OF DIRECTCRS COMPOSITION AND CATEGGRY
Tha Sitangth of Boord of Directors is 11 45 on 3151 March, 2004, whosa composition is ghven balaw :
Exacutiva Directors : 3({Thee]
HomExacutive Indepandant Directors : 8{Eighi)

Indopendani Dxrectoes apart Irom gatting silting fees do nol have any other mararial pecuniary islationship of transactions with tha Company, s Promotsrs, its Managsment ol its Associates.
COMPOSITION OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS, NUMBER OF DIRECTORSHIP IN OTHER COMPANIES AND MEMBEASHIPS IN THE BOARD AND COMMITTEE OF OTHER
COMPANIES:

SNo. Nams of the Direclors Poeiion Category of Director No. ol Diractorship No. of Membership In
of olher Companies. Boerd Committes
Chairman Mambar
1 Shrl Abhey Cswal Chairman & Maraging Director ExocuivaDracior 1 NIL NIL
2 Shri Anil Bhatla Whale-Time Director -da - 2 NIL NI
3 Shri Ranjan Sharma Dirsctor {Financa} -do- NIL NiL NIL
4 Sha P. Kumar Indepandent Director Non Exscutive 1 NIL 2
Oiractor

5 Shri A. Karat ICICI Nominee " da- 8 NIL 3
L] Shri §.C_ Marwaha SBI Nomines -do- 2 NIL 1
7 Shri C.M. Bhargay LIC Nominge -do- NIL NI NIL
8 Shri 8.C. Bhandari GIC Nomines -do- 2 NIL NIL
g Shri U.P. Siagh UTI Nominee - do- 3 NIL 4
0 Shri AL Loankar IFGI Nominee - 3 NIL 3
1] Shrl C.P. Philig_ IDA! Nominaa -do- 2 NiL 4
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The Nurmbar of Non-Exacutiva Indepandant Direcicrs are more than 50% ¢f tola! numbar ol Directors. -H
ATTENDANCE OF EAGH DIRECTOA AT THE BOARD MEETINGS AND AT LAST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING: =
Home of tha Directors No. of Board Meating No. of Board Whather attended
Hetd Meating Attended. Lust AGH.
Exocutivs Directors
I “shri Abhay Oswal 8 5 NG
Shri Anll Bhalla L] 2 NO
Shrl Ranjan Sharma ] S YES
N Directors
Shri P, Kumar ] & YES
Shri 5.C. Marwaha (SBI} [ ] NC
Shri A, Karati {{CIC1) ] 4 NO
Shri C.M. Bhargav {LIC) [ 5 KO
Shri 5.C. i (GIC) 6 5 NO
Shri L.P. Singh {UTI) ] & NO
Shit R.Loonkar (IFCI) [ 5 NO -~
S C.P. Philip (IDBI) [} 5 =5 2

Durling the yoar under review, six Board Mestings wara hetd as Indlcated balow :

Date of Boatd Meetings

30.05.2003, 26062003, 30.07.2003, 31.10.2003, 31.01.2004 5 27.03.2004

3. COMMITTEES OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS:

The Board ot Dirpctars had constituled 4 Commitiees of the Board, namely Share Transfo: Committae, Audil C: ittea, Investors
Commitlss. The Commiltacs meeat as oken as requirec. Tha details o Gommil ings Iharaol are as lollows,
SHARE TRANSFER COMMITTEE

Datail of the Meutinga held

HAole & P Iities No.of i hold during 1he year No.ot Mesiings attended

To approva Iransler of Shares (PhysicaDemat), Shri Abhay Oswal a 19

issue of Duplicata/Consolidated/SplitDelaceRamat Shri Anil Bhalla a 2

ShareCenilicalas elc. Bhri Ranjan Sharma Fal ]

AUDIT COMMITTEE
ROLE & RESPONSIBILITIES

a iverseaing the Company's Financial reporling procass and the disclosure of its Financial

b F ingy the appeintment and removal of sxternal auditor, lixation of audi ee and other payments lo bg made to him,

G R jing with the annual linanclal bafore submission Io Iha Board.

d Reviewing with the Managemant, sxtamal and internat auditors, the adequacy of internal Conlrol systermns.

B Ruviewing the adequacy of intemal pudit funetion, including the struciure of Ihe intsmal audil departmant and coveraga and raque of Inlemal Audit.

I. Discusshon with Inlernal auditors regarding any signi lindings and loltow up thereon. —i .

g Raviawing the findings of any inlamal investigaticns by tha intermal auditors into matlars whare thara is suspocted fraud of irregulanty ¢ o failure ef intamal contror

systems of a malarial naiure and reporting the matter to the Board,

h Discussion wilh the extemal auditors batore the aud! commences, nature and scope of audil and alsc 1o have post Audil discussion for area ol concem,

i Reviawing the company’s linancial and risk management policies.

i To leok inte the raasons lor detaullin payment to D i D jors, and Cradliors.

k To invesligate any activity within ils terms of rel and ta seck Legal or advice and any ir fon from the Employees of Lhs Company or outsiders

having experkss as may bs doemod nocoasary.
Dotalls of Meatings hald

Membars No. of Mewtings hald No.ol Meetings attsnded

Shri A Karati, {Chalrman) 4 3

Shri P Kumar A 4

Shri § C Marwaha 4 d

Shri B Loonkar 4 3
Al " the Audit ittep are indeper on-Executive Dirsctors. Al theas Direciors ara having sutfician! knowledge of corporala finance, accounts and company law
metters. The Chairman of the Cx sa M utive Trclan Dircior nominated by the Board. Director {(Financa) ol the Company fs parmanent invileo 8l tha maclings of tho
i and has vast of Finance, Aocounts and legal mattars. The Statutory Auditors and the Intemal Auditors are also iwitad in the mastings of Committee from lima to ime.

Tha Company Secretary acts as the Sacretary of Ihe Commitiee.

INVESTORS' GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
Investors’ Grievance Commitias was formed by the Board of ireciors comprising of 3 Directars out of which one is Non Exacutve Indepandert Dirocior, wha is aiso tha Chairman of the committoo.
Datails of e Mootings hald:

Mombers No. of Meatings held No. of Meotings attanded
Shel A, Karati 4 2
Shri Anil Bhalla 4 2
Shri Ranjan Shama 4 4
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b REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Thae Aemunaration Committes was formiad on 30.01,.2003 by the Boara ! Directors comgrising of Ihres Non-Executive Inc Directoes. The Ram. B ¥ite has the powers.
10 daierming and recommand to the Board of the remyneration payabia to wholo-tima-Cirectors, Mt ing of i ittoo was hold during tha year under raview.
LH COMPLEANCE QFFICER;
Shri H.K. Gupta, Company Secratary is the Compliance Cificer,
5. SHAREHOLDERS COMPLAINTS:
No.of complainta recelved No. of complaints resolved to No. of pending transter
Duilng 01-04-2003 to 31-03-2004 ke notisfaction of sharghaldars of shares
uas 1135 NIL™
*  Remaining complaints wera redressed during the Momth ol April & May 2004,
** Ason date thero are no shares pending for ranslar excepl dispuled cases or wharo rastrain crder is still panding.
& ANNUAL GENERAL MEETINGS:
Pogiculars 2000-2001 200t-2002 2002-2003
Datb4 Timo 20092001 21.00.2002 15092000
11.00 A M. 1100AM. 11:00 AM.
Ve Villago & P.O. Piprofa, Jalalabad Road, Shatjahanpur-242 001 (UP)
No.of Specinl Resolutions Passsd 1 NIL 7
POSTAL BALLOT:
The Company shall tollow the relavant provisions of law regarding Postal Ballol ns and whan requirgd,
7. DISCLOSURES :
a Thera weara no Iransactions in the comgany of vith its Directors, b of refativas elc. that may hava potential conflict with the interast of the company
atlarge.
b Thare wara no casos ol non-complianca by Iha company and no penaities and strictures warg imposad on tha comparry by Stock Exchanges or SEBI or any other statutory
authority onany matter refated ic capital markels dusing 1he kast 3 years.
a MEANS OF COMMUNICATION:
The company publishes its quanarly rasutts in Englith Newspaper “Pioncar™ having all India circulalion and Hind Newspaper “Amar Ujalka (Kanpur Ediion)” having cirautation mainty
intho Siote of Utiar Pradash. Company also displays it quanerty resuits and significant corporala information on i1s wabsite Oswaliert.com, Quartarly Unaudilad Financial resulls
ara gont to the Stock Exchanges whero tho Company’s shares areiisted.
L3 INTERNAL AUDITORS:
Tha {ompany has appointed a firm of Ghanered Accountants as Internai Auditors to raview inlernal control systoms of tha Company and 1o report therson. Tha reperts of the Intamai
Auditors i by the Audit G iltee.
. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The company has Ho pecuniary ralalionship or transaction wilh its non-axeculiva Directors, ciher than paymanl of sitiing feas for ing Board and C« M "
The ing paic to Exacutve Dir pp by the rem commiltes in ils maating heid on 30.01.2003. by tha Board of Directors in Ihe maaling hald on
30.01,2003 and by tha Sharehoiciars in their Annual goneral by held an 13.09.2000, The said remLnaraton is within tha revised limit of minimum remunertion in cese of inadequacy

Nioating
or no profil prascribad in Seclion—il of Past1l ol Schedule X1 of tha Compandes Act, 1956. Tha GOMpaTy does not havre trry incentive plan finked to pardormanca o nchigvement
ol IKe Company's objoctives, Thero is no stock option scheme for any of Ihe Directors ar Efnployess of tha Company,

Detalle of remunerstion/sitting losa paid to Directors of the Company durlng the flnancial yaor ended March 31, 2004 ere givan balow ;

(Amt. in Rs,)
5. No. Nome of the Directars Salary P.F. Porgulsitas Sltting Fee for
Attending Boardr
.

1 Shri Abhey Owwal 18,00,600/- 2,186,000/ 15.05.09%- KNIL

2 Shri Anil Bhalta 18,00.000¢- 2,168,000/ 18,568,400~ NIL

3 Shri Ranjan Sharma 18,00,000¢- 2,185,000 10.56.400~ NIL

A Shri P Kumar NIL NiL NiL 50,000

NOMINEE DIRECTORS

] Shii S C Marwahs MIL NIL NIL ) 50,000

8 Shn A Karati . NIL NIL HIL 35,000/~

7 Shii C M Bhargav NIL NIL RIL 25,000~

a Shii 5. C Bhandari NIL NIL NIL 25,000

9 ShAU.P. Singh HIL NIL NI 30,0000
10 Shri R.Loonkar NIL NIL NIL - 40,0007

H ShriC.P. P?_EEIB_ NIL NIL NIL 25,000/
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11. GENERAL SHAREHOLDERS' INFORMATIQON: ’{
Annual Genaral Mesting iz proposed to be held
Date ! 25" August, 2004. .
Vona K Village & P.O. Piprola, Jalalabad Read, Shahjahanpur— 242001 {U.P).
Beck Closura Dato B 237 August, 2004 10 25" August, 2004, -
Dividand Payment : Dueto net losa, the direclors hava nat proposed any

divicencs tor the Financial yoat prided 31 Maveh, 2004,
12 {a} FINANCIAL CALENDER

Unaudited Financlal Rasults

1or the quarter enttad Tontativa Dates
30.00.2004 4™ Waok of July, 2004
30.092004 4" waok of Oct, 2004
31122008 4™ woak of Jan, 2005
31.09.2006 4" waak of April, 2005
Nex1 Annual Genaral Meoling Laxsi werak of August, 2004
{h)  Sharas of the Company ars listed on the following Stock Exchanges : "
5. No. Name of the Stock Exchange . Stock Code No. of Comp!}y'l Sharea
1 The UP Stock Exchango Association Lid. Pedam Towars, 14/113, Civil Lines, Kanput-208 01 [00277
2 The Dathi Slock Exchanga L Ltd.DSE Houss, 311, Asaf Ali Road,New Dalhi-110002. DDD0E:
ar The Calcuta Stock pe Assoclation Ltd.7, Lyons Range, Kolkala-700 001 WO0RS04H4
4 Madras Stock Exchangs Limited, 11 Sacond Line Baach, Chennai-600 001 Nol avaiiabie
5. The Stock Mumbai Phiroze Jegjoabhoy Towar, Dalal Strest, Mumbai-400 001 500063
8 The Ludhiana Stock Exchange Association Ltd.Faroze Gandhi Markel, Ludhiana-141001 QCFL
The Stock Exchange Ahmedabed, Kamdhenu Complex, Opp. Shahjanand Collage. Panjarapola. Ahmadabad-350 015 Nol avaitable
8 Nalicnal Stock Exchange ol India Ltd. Exchanga Plaza, Bandra-Kurla Complex, Bandra {Easl), Mumbai-400 051 Binaal Agro
Annual Listing tee 1or the year 2003- 2004 was paid (o Nationa! Stock Exchange ol India Lid.
* Pursuant to SEBI guidelines, 2003 for voluntary dellsting of . for dellsting of of the 1he pany are pending with the Stock
Exchanges as glven above.
{c) MARKET PRICE DATA {Figures In As.)
Month Bombay Stock National Stock Exchange
HIGH . Low HIGH LOW
M. 2003 4.10 30 470 15
May2003 500 23 495 a3
g, 2003 8% 425 695 440
Juiy, 2000 701 500 740 500
August, 2003 1.80 550 985 560
Soptember, 2000 THS 445 775 506
October, 2003 485 a8y - -
| November, 20C3 525 381 - : Ld
D 2009 D45 557 A0 775
{8ruary, 2004 B 551 AES g5
Fabruary, 2004 630 520 5.3 518
March, 2004 545 1% 550 400

(d} REGISTRAR & SHARE TRANSFER AGENT
Skyilng Financial Services Pvi. Lid.
123, Vinoba Puri, Lafpat Nagar — Il
Now Delhl - 110024
Phone No. 29633777, 28847136

(o) SHARE TRANSFER 5YSTEM

Ws Skyline Financial Sarvices Pvi Lid, is working as Registrar & Share Transfar agent of the Comparry. The Share Transter raquesis raceivad in physical tornm aro rogistared
wilhin 30 days from tha daia of ledgment of Shares and damat requests recesived irom the Depasitory Participants ars processed within 21 days Irom tho date of recaipt.

n DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDING AS ON 31.3.2004

No, of Sharea No. of Shares hald k) Nc.of Sha %
1-500 S1370611 2000 318332 b2
501-100¢ 9604931 374 13271 382
1001-2000 53557 23 A 121
2001-3000 2520845 988 538 0.3
30014000 1376263 053 0 Q.12
40015000 1511370 058 = 019
5001-10000 3188280 124 440 013
10001 -end abova 181206318 0.8 7 Q10
TOTAL 256809159 100.00 3303 100.00
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SHAREHOLDING PATTEAN AS ON 31.3.2006
Categary 1 No. of Sharss I weags o holding

A | Promalars ard Associnlas 138207 452 i)
B | Banka. Financial Instiuticns and Mutial Funds 2.63.30.983 1026
C | Indian Pubic 8,55,99,145 sk
0 | NRVOCE/FI'S 5662579 220

TOTAL _|— 25,68,09,159 10000

{h} DEMATERIALISATION OF SHARES
The equily shares of the company iall Undar the category of compuisary demat form for all tho inveStora. The comparnry provides facilitias for simuitaneous transier and
demalerialisation ol sharas tails invastors (hrough its Registrar & Shara Transfer Agant. Aboul 72.65% of the Equity Sharu Capital of the company has bean domated lil
31.0.2004. The shateswol tha Company are traded in Dematmoda under ISIN HNumberiNE 143A0101C

(i} PLANT LOCATIONS

1] UreaDivision : 2 Photohatic Eertilizer Rivision :
Regd OHice : Village Piproln Vilaga Mysadia
Jalalahad Road Disit. Jagat Singh Pur
4~ Shahjohenpur-243001 (UF} Paradecp (Orizas) - T34 132,
.
i) l&yESTQRS' CORRESPONDENCE

The Investora/shareholders may mitke Cortospondence fof

a)  Transier and dematerialisation of sharss.

1= Non-receipl of dividand,

¢)  Query relating te Annual Report,

d) Quory refating to any othar matter for \ha shares haldin tha company at tha toliowing address |

SKYLINE FINANCYAL SERVICES PVT LTD.
{Rogistrars & Share Transtar Agent)

123, VINOBA PURIL, LAJPAT NAGAR-I),

NEW DELHI - 116024,

PHONE No.- 28633777, 20847136,

‘Sharencidgrs Nowding shares in Demal Form a1 inlom. Ieir respacive Deposilory Participants for any changa in tha Bank Dolails, Mandate, Power o Atiomey or Changs
of Address.

k] The Company wil comply with Lha Nen-Mandatary requirements given in Schedula— Il ot Clause 48 of the Listing Agreemant with the Stock Exchanges, as and when roquired,

KANAGEMENT DISCUSSION & ANALYSIS Arngsure IV

1. OVERVIEW

The demafd for fertilizars in tha cguntry is directly linked 1o tha health of agricutiural sacior, which, 85 is woll known, has beon ing through a difficull phase in the recant past.
T of agrcuiuTah [ I ? , Vi3 aiod 10 roach the langaled lavels due 10 Sevaral redsons. s has msufted in virtually nil grawih in the damand
for Lirea and nagalive growih ke DAP in tha 125 few yaars, As a rosult, supply cont ‘Fmo F as of now, Howavor, a few good monsoons coupied with measures
baing planna for the wail being of farmers could aker 1ha sconaria and improve the gemand for lartifizers in the country.

2 SEGMENT WISE PERFORMANCE
Urea Plant

Tha operation o Urea planl continias tob i Y. iliby ol r 1 gas trom GAIL was r\otsumdenldurm? thit ¥ear cauging utilization of high cost naphtha o supplamont
Iha luel raquiremants. Howevar, il is hoped that gas supply cansiraints witl soon by taken core of with tho svailabllity of LNG on tho wesl coast.

F’ﬁceﬁnalimn‘un levala far Urea improvad as compared (o (ha pravious yasr due o reduction in inventary carrying costs,

TM%W Concession Schome for Uraa plants announced by ha Govemmen of India cama inta eifect from Agril. 2003, This schome replaces the Unitwise retentien pricing schema
which was in lorca since 1977 in tha Urea Bactor,

Tuing advaritaga of e Gov's paiicy, your Company plopasas lo deboMoneck and revamp the Urea pani at Shahjahanpur ginally increase f p and improve th o
consumption lovals in order ta futher enhancs the profilability ol Urea operations.
GAP Piant

The DAR plaal cormaioed shutdos fos about _E.wenwm\hswr'mMwaim&nwmmMsmmwwmnn.Thn SAGOWN pering was ulilized o revamp the Suphunic
Agid Plant 50 a8 (o increasa tho capacity uilization of tho plant,

Ocean raighls for dry bulk carge touchad unpracedynted lovels during Lhe year pushing up tho prices of key raw matarials viz, rock phosphate and suphur. Sinca Iha concession

on phosphatic terilizars is tatod on Ihe price of ilutui acid, the incraasa in the pricas ol rock phasphata and sulphur had to be boma by (he company, raducing
W\npm(imb_w;?! opesationy, This Sauation i, however, EXEly 10be recifie turng Yia ysar 2004-55 vwher the revised pricas o phnspgel’l: @i are taken nto accaumt for the puposa
of calculation of )
The Govesrameni of Indla alsa finnlized the new schame ol congaasian for DAP affocivo trom Aprit, 2003 Sased on th iona of Tanit G Is3hon.

a HUMAN RELATIONS
Industriai relations at various lpcations of the comgany ramain cordial, The mar [ i ps 1 4quip and el o ot aft Isvefs to shoulder groater

rasponsiblitles. Tolal number of amployoes as on Match 31, 2004 wore 2452
4 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
Tha company has inlamal gonlrol systoms in piace. Intarnal aug;l‘: baing carriod out by rotalion at various oplomlional areas and dopartments. The audit rapans receive highest

priority by tha arg placed witt jies befora the Audi Camr Iont nominaea on thg Botd of the comparny. Pariodic review
and follow up of audis cbservalions is caried oul 1o ensura hair implomentation.

5 RISKS AND CONCERNS
The lartiizar business in nclia is among the mest eguialad - production, distribution and pricing s1T balng largoly docidod by the Govsmment. The fartilizar industry, caught betwesn

gt
ising input CosH on ha 00 hand And the govemmant’s compuision 1o conlinut to maka tertlizers. availabla at affordable pricas on he other, conlinues to sutfar from undar-recoveries
o raasonabla costs of productian. The fartilizer businasa and its prolilabihly is critically dapandant on policies ol he gavernmanl.

Anather obvious risk in lerilizer Gusiness is the tmely amival and adequacy of monsoons in the country. Apart fram gemand, Lhis factor atfects Ihe cash NMows o5 well as intarost
codts as working capital naeds of lartllizer companias go up. -
Ingasa ol phosphalie sagment, all the raw materials are impariad 2nd the riska penzinto raw material cosls, odean treights and exchange rate fluciuations.

6 OPPORTUNITY AND GUTLODK
With new tartilizer policies in place for both Urea and DAP sectars, il is cloar thal low c03t producars will amorge suocesshulin limas to come, aspecially whan the ara of decontrol
dawns, Bath Lho plants of your comparry command the Advanta, ‘oonomies ol scale and amploy slale-of-the-art lachnologios resutling inlow varniable cOsts. With the govemmant's

fous on agriculture sector, ltis hapad hal Ihe lot of tasmers M?L‘impm thereby pushing up tha consuration of fadikzars. While (ha linanciol situation ol your comparty i the shord,
larm is under sirass, tha directors are conlidant of o pasitive outlook in the medium to long term.
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CSWAL

AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Shareholders of Oswat Chemicals &
Fertilizers Limited

1.

w

&

We have audited the attached Balance Sheet
of Oswal Chemicals & Fartilizars Limitad as at
March 31, 2004, the related Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Stalemant for the
year ended on that date annexed thereto, which
we have signed under reference 1o this report.
These financial statements are the
rasponsibility of the Company’s management;
our responsibility is to express an opinion on
these financial statements based on our audit.

Wea hava conducted our audit in accordance
wilh auditing standards generally accepted in
India. Those Standards require that we plan
and perform the audil o oblain reasonable
assurance about whather the financial
statements are froe of matenal misstalement.
An audit incluctes axamining, on a test basis,
evidence supporting the amounts ana
disclosures in the financial statemenis. An
audit also includes assessing the accounting
principles used and significant estimaies made
by management, as well as evaluating the
overall financial statement presentation. We
believe that our audit provides a reascnablte
basis for our opinion.

As required by the Companies (Audior's
Report} Order, 2003 issued by the Ceniral
Government of India in 1erms of sub-section
{44) of Section 227 of ‘The Companies Act,
1856" of India (ihe ‘Act’) and on the basis of
such chacks of the boaks and records of the
GCompany as we considered appropriate and
according o the information and explanations
given to us, we give in the Annexure &
statement on the mallers specified in
paragraphs 4 and 5 of the said Order.

Further 10 our coraments in the Annexure
refarred to in paragraph 3 above, we report
that:

(@) Subjgct to our comments in paragraph 5.4
balow, wa have obtained all the information
and explanations, which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for
the purposes of our audil:

{bYin our opinion, proper bocks of accoum
have been kept by the Company as required
by law so lar as appears from our
examination of those bogks;

(c)The Balance Sheet, Profit and Loss
Account and the Cash Flow Slatement dealt
with in this report are in agreement with the
books of account;

{d)In our opinion, the Balance Shest, Profit
and Loss Account and Cash Flow Statement
dealt wilh by ihis repart have been prepared
ngorpliance with the applicable accounting
standards referrad to in section 211 {3C) of
the 'Act’;

{e)On the basis of written rapresentations
received trom the Directers of the Company
other than Nomineo Directors whe are
axemp!, and takan on record by the Board
of Directors, we repori that none of the
direciors are disqualified as on March 31,
2004 from being appointed as a diractor in

terms of ¢lause (g} of sub-section (1) to
Section 274 of the Ack;

{f) I our opinion and to the besi of our
information and according to the
explanalions given la us, the Balance Sheat,
Profit & Loss and Cash Flow Siatemant,
together with the notes thareon and attached
thereio, give in the prescrbad mannar, the
information required by the ‘Act’, and, read
with notg-27 on schecuie XXl regarding
the preparation of these accounts on 2 going
congern basis, and subject to our comments
in paragraphs 5.1 1o 5.7 bafow, give
respectively, a Irue and fair view in
conformity with the accounting principies
generaily accepted in India:

{a) in the case of the Balance Sheet, ¢ the
stata of aflairs of the Company as at
March 31, 2004;

(b) in tha case of the Profit and Loss
Account, of the loss for the year ended
on ihat date, and

(c) in the case of Cash Flow Statemant, of
the cash flows for the year ended on
that date

5.1 Non-provision of dispuled Income tax
demands. Including demands pertaining o
assessmant yaar 199566, 1998-92, 15399-
2000, 2000-2001 & 2061-02 amounting fo Hs.
1,935.03 lacs (ne! of provision), as staled in
nota 4fa) & (b} on schedule XXI.

5.2 Non-provision of import pass leas amounting
to As. 42.85 lacs on industrial alcohol as
stated in note 3 (i} on schedule XX,

5.3 Non-ascertainment and non-provision of
doubtiu! debts, if any, out of debts
outstanding for more than six monihs.

5.4 Nola @ on schedule XX regarding non-
ravonciliations of accounts with the suppliers
of DAP division and interesi payadle to
orstwhile debeniure/band holders and
payments made (o them based only on their
ciaims.

5.5 Note 6 on schedule XXil regarding non-
provisicn of subsidy refund due lo downward
revision of ratention price contesied by the
Company the recovery of which has been
stayed by the Hon'ble Delhi High Court,
estimated lo be Rs. 21.768.92 iacs, tha
ultimale liability of which cowld not be readily
ascertainad.

5.8 Note 21 on schedute XXIi ragarding issuance
of prelerenca shares for As.2, 186 lacs and
conversion of interast into funded interest
term loan amounting to As.12,565.99 lrcs
puirsuant fo a Debt Restructuring Schema lor
securad loans of DAP division as apprevad
by the Corporale Debt Restructuring Celf
being subject to reconcifiation/confirmation
by the lenders.

5.7 Note t1{b} of Schedula XXIi regarding
mangagerial remuneration amounling 10
Rs. 112.71 facs paid to direciors, being
subject to approvai of Central Govammeant.

Wa turther repori thal withou! considering
our COMmenis in paragraphs 5.4 16 5.6 above
the impact of which wa are unabig to quantify
and our corments in paragraph 5.7 above
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Place: New Dethi
Dated: June 29, 2004

being a fagal matler and afiar cor‘iiisring
adjustments arising on account of our
comments in paragraphs 5.1 and 5.2 above,
io tha extent quantifiable, would rasuli int the
loss before tax axpense of A5.28,277 .80 lacs
as against As.28,234.95 lacs and in the foss
after taxation of A3 .30,314.79 lacs as agains!
Rs. 26,336.91 tacs as shown in the Profit
and Loss Account. Consequently, net current
assals would change to As. 60,492.37 iacs
as against Rs. 62,470.25 facs and dabit
balance in profit and loss account would
change to As. 58,814.62 lacs as agains! Rs.
56,836.75 lacs as shown in the Balance
Sheet.

Anaﬂ;am Dhawan
=" Partner

Membership No.F084451
For and on behalt of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants

ANNEXURE TO AUDITORS' REPORT

[Referrad ta in paragraph 3 of the Audilars’ Report
of avan date to the members of Oswal Chemicals
& Fertilizers Limited on the financial statements
for the year ended March 31, 2004]

]

ity

a} The Company has mainiained proper
records other than for closed divislons,
and furnifure & fixtures to show jull
particulars including quantitalive details
and situation of its lixed assels.

b} Accerding to information and
explanations given lo us, the fixed
assels ol the Company are physically
veritiad by the management in a phasad
progremme designed i¢ cover all items
of the Urea and the DAP division over a
period of two years which in our opinion
is reasonabla. However, during the year,
the Company has not parg rmad the
physical verification of fufrkifife and
fixturos for its Urea and DAP divisions,
due lhls year es per Iha phasad
programme. Accordingly. we are unable
to comment on discrepancias, if any,
thal may arisa on thair subseguent
physical verification.

¢) In our opinion and accerding to the
informaiion and explanations given to
us, a substantial part of fixed assets
has nol been dispesed ¢l by the
Company during the year.

a) The inventory {excluding stocks with
third parties aggregating Rs. 1839.20
lacs) has been physically varifiad by
tha management during the year. In our
apinicn, the trequency ol verification s
reasonable. In raspact of invantory lying
wilh third parties, slocks aggregaling
Rs.1839.30 lacs hava bean confirmed.

b} In our epinion, the procedures of
physical veritication of inveniery
tollowed by the managemeni are
reasonable and adequata in refation 1o
1he size of the Company and the nature
of its buginess.

¢) ©On the basis ol our sxaminalion of the
inweniory racords, in our opinion, tha



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED cisnNAL

j Company is maintaining proper records of inventary. The dis¢repancies noticed on physical verification ol invantory as compared to book records
were not material.

ii) The Gompany has neither granted nor taken any loans, secured or unsecurad, odrom companies, firms or other parties covered in the register

maintained under Section 301 of the Act. Accordingly, clauses 3{b), ic ) & (d) of the Order are not applicable.

v} in our opinion and according {0 ihe inlormation and explanations given 10 us, in general, here are adequate intemal contro) procedures

commensurate with he size of the Cempany and the nature of its businass for tha purchase of inventory. fixed ssets and for the sala of goods.
Further, on the basis of our examination of the books and records of the Gompany, and according 1o the information and explanations given t¢
us, we hive neither come atToss Nof have beer informed of any coninving f&iure 19 correct major weaknesses i The aloresaid intarmal cantrol
pracedures,

v] @  inouropmionand aceording tothe I (i jons given to us, the ions that read o b into the rogister in pursuance of Section 30t of Act, have
boen so enterad.
by Inour opinionand rcting o the mformation and explanatk fvan (o us, thars ang ng £ da i of contraces or o dinto tha register

{0 pursuance of Soclion 301 gf the Aot and exoteding e wilus of rupeos (velacs in 1eapec o any party enifing the yeat, which nave boen made a1 pricos which & nol
sanabla having regard to tha pravailing markat prices Al the relevan tme.

¥
vi) The pany hasnot accepted any doposils rom the public within tha Maaning of Sactions 584 and 5344 of ne Act and the Rules ramed therg ynder.
vii)  Inour opinion, the Company's prasont inlomal audil sysiem is generady commensuralg wilt s size and nalure of its busingss.

Vi) ‘Wao have broadly reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company in respect of produtts where, pursuant to the Rules made by tha Ceniral Governmant of India, the

Thaimienance of cos! racorda has been prescrivod under dause {d) of sub-saclion (1) of Section 209 of tha ACt and are of tha opinion thal prima facie, the prascribed accounts and
records have been made and maintaingd. Wo have not, howaver, made A detailed axamination of tha racords with a view ta dotamning whelher they are accuralo or complete.

ix) a8}  According i thainformation mnd explanalions given to us and the records of the Company examined by us. in OLr epinion, the Company is genarty rmqulasin depositing

undisputad staluiory dues including investor K p ion tund, stata  ir tax, wealth Lax, CusiDMS diry, excise duty and other matarial
stalutory dues a3 appicablo, with the appropriate authaniles.

B} Aecordingio e intormation and pxplanations given ko us and the (6cords of the Contpany examined by us, the particulans of cuas of sales-tax, income-1ax, customs duty,
wathh lax, axcise duty and cass as at March 31, 2004 which hava not been depasiied on account of a dispute, am as 10llows -

Noma of the stolute Matura of duas Amount Perlod to which Faram, whare the
(Rs. lacs} the amount dispute is pending
rolates
Incoma Tax Adl, 1981 Income tax including interest 210118 Assessment Yaarg 1958-99 and 2000-01 income Tax Appellate Tribuna)
Incorme Tox Act, 1961 Income tax inciuding inlerest 237.80 Assessment Yaar 2001-02 Cemmissioner of Income Tax
{Appeals)
Wealh Tax Act, 1857 Wealth lax including interast 1.25 Assessman Yaar 1999-00 and 2001-02 Incorna Tax Appefiaia Tribumal
QOriase Sales Act, 1947 Sales x including interest 189,68 Jung 30, 2000 1p March 31, 2002 Hen'bla High Court of Orissa
Bitar Financa Act, 1881 Sales Tax inchudingintorast 184.68 Financial Year 2000-01, 2001-02, 2002-03 Deputy Commissionaf
ard ponalty

x)

The accumulated lossos of the Company as ot March 31, 2004 are mare than filty parcant af its nat worth and it has alsa incurred cash lasses during Ihe linancial year ended on that
date and in the immediately preceding finarcial year.

X} Accordipqg 16 tha mcords of the Gaompany, it has datauted incapayoent of ducs 0 fnancial | vty ks darieg the year, Deialts of suEh oulsEanding dues inchuding
thb@;&% and amouynt of detayitis given bolow-
Bank/Financial Institution/ Amount of Petauli Period of Ramarke
Dobaiture holdars {As. lace) Datsull (days)
Financlal Institulons {varicus) 1173987 various amounts ranging fram 2 1o 567 days Unpaid Rs.2 03 laca whichis disputed
Dobenlure holders {LT)) 386280 various amounls ranging from 12 to 638 days. As. 3,504 44 lacs unpaid, oul of which

Rs. 8.05 laca is disputnd

A dabt resinsciuring schema lor securod loans of DAP division of the Company has boen approved by tha Corparate Debl Restructuding Cali under which, Lter alia, all datauits (ather than
in respect of loans &mounling lo R's 2,875 lacs dua to Unt Trus! Of Indla) have been restructured.

xiiy

The Compariy has nol graniad any loans and Bdvances on the basis of sacunily by way of pladge of shares, debentures and olher cacuriles,

ity “The provisiona ot any special siatiia applicabls to ¢hit fund fnidhi  mutus! benedit undfsocielies are not Applicabla fo the Company.

siv) Iriour opinion, the Company is nol & daaler or tradar [n shares., oS, and other i

xv) Inour opirion, ng tothe ir ion and explanations gh s, the Compary hag not given any guarantas fo¢ loans iaken by othars rom banks or nancial insgiutions.
dudng M ybar.

i) “The Company has not obtained eny larm loans durig the ysar, However, under Lhe Debt Aestructuring Schoma refomad ta in Note 21 on Schidute XXI| nterest convertad to funded
interost term loan has not been considered under this clause.

wril) On the basis o1 1viaw. ot funds on an ion aa mads aveilablo 10 us-and as representad to us by the managemant, funds raised on long 16rm
basia o the extenl of Rs 17.853. 25 Izce, have baen Laed to finance shof 18m assats (othar than core working capital).

xvifi) “Tha Company has not mace any preferantial afiatmoni of shares to partes and companies coverad in the register maintalned under Section 307 of the Agt du;lnu tha year,

wixy Ty Cormpany has Nt issued oy debentura during e year and accerdingly, no spcuriies hay been ereatad

xx) Tha Campany has not raisad any monay by public issues during the year.

xxi) During the course of our sxamination ol tha books and rectrds of tha Company, carred oul in accordance with Iho generally acce pled audilng practives in tndla, and according to
{haironhation ant Spianalions ghvon o 0%, e 1 cinar coma eorass. ¥ st on o by the Company, notced or reponed during tha year, nor have we boen informed
of such ¢80 by lhp Managemenl.

Anupa Dhawan

Partner

Membarship No.FG84451

Forand on pehalfol

Placo: New Dathi Prica Waturhouse
Dated: Juna 29, 2004 Chariared Accountants

1



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

Balance Sheet
As At 31st March 2004

1

Particulars Schedule No.  As At 31.03.2004 As Al 31.03,2003
(Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
SOURCES DF FUNDS
Sharel * Fund
Capital ] 49,680.92 49,680.92
Reserves & Surplus 1" 54,662.84 54,662.84
10434376 304,343.76
Loan Funds
Secured Loans 1 249,036 02 "_?42 302.84
353,379.78 346,646.60
REC, ‘NO
Application Of Funds .
Fixed Assets 28 v
Grass Block REe 332 369,661.11 368,218.52
Less: Depraciation 21{‘3)(:. N 147,615.53 130,248.37
Nt Block areha90g 222,045 58 237,870.15
Capital Work In Progress 511/ L 6,072.65 5,469.56
70812004 228.118.29 243.459.73
Investments 1000 v 4,908.44 5,127.72
Deferred Tax Asset (net) A v ; 101.96
Ty
Current Assets, Loans & Advans .. BRAF
Inventeries 21 1 Vil 39,660.34 40,388.42
Sundry Debtars L% Vil 47,105.31 46.318.27
Cash & Bank Balances 1‘"—1 29/ 2004 X 2,734.45 2,071.11
Loans & Advances b. N 13 X 3.592.29 4,119.51
ARuN. 4 93,092.39 92,897.41
Less:Current Llabilities & Promm_
Current Liabifities x 29,323.69 R4.096.03
Provisions X 1,298.45 81319
30,622.14 25,009.22
Net Current Assets 62,470.25 67,868.19
Miscellangous Expenditure
(Ta the extant not written off or adjusted)
Deferred Ravenue Expenditura 1,046.11 1,569.186
(Note 1¢ on schadute XXity
Profit & Loss Acoount 56,836.7% 26,499.84
353,379.76 346,646.50
Notes to the Accounts XXl

This is the balance sheet
referred to in our repon of even date

The schedules referred to above form an integrat
Part of the balance sheat

For and on beha¥f of the Beand
Aniipam Dhawan HK. Gupta SPArya Anil Bralla Ranjan Sharma Abhay Qswal
Partner Comparny GM (Finance) Director Finance Chairmart & Managing
Mermbership No. F 084451 Secretary Director Director
Fer and on Behalf of
Price Waterhousa
Chartered Accountants -
Place: Naw Dethi

Dated: 29th June, 2004



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CIBWAL

PREFIT & LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31st March 2004

Particulars Schedule No. For the Year For the Year
) Ended on 31.03.2004 Ended on 31.3.2003
(Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
Income
Sales (Nota 8 on schedule XXI1) _ 120,884.36 124,575,53
Other Income Xk 2,189.59 1,149.98
123,073.95 125,725.49
.4
Raw Maleg | Consurmption X 45,894.2( 59,770.19
Other Manufacturing Expenses Xv 34,167.57 28,348.48
Employees’ Cost xvi 3,017.47 3,500.20
Selling Expenses Xvil 12,164.77 19,809.42
Finance Expenses XVl 30,273.63 35,500.82
Depraciation 17,545.01 18,843.03
Administration Expenses XX 4,069,32 4,124.04
Adjustments due to {Increase)/Decrease in
Stock of Finished Goods and Work In Progress XX 3,467.50 {10,514.83)
150,599.47 159,381.36
Loss before Prior Period Adjustments and Taxation {27.525.52) {33,655.87})
Prior Peried Adjusiments xxi 709.43 1,026.12
Loss before Tax Expense (28,234.95) (34,681.99)
Tax Exponse - -
-Deferred Tax Asset (Note 16 on schedule XXII) - (12,634.94)
- Delfarred Tax Asset {Nat } of earlier year writtan off
{Note 16 on schedule XXI1) 101.96 -
Loss aft » Tax Expense (28,336.41) (22,047.05)
Loss brédught forward fram Previous Year (28,489.84) (6,452.79)
Balance Carried lo Balance Sheet {56.836.75) (26,499.84)
Eaming Par Share {Nominal value of Rs.10 each) ’
Basic / Diluted (Note 23 on Schedule XXII) (Rs.) (11.03) {B.58)
Notes fo the Accounts XX
This is the Profir & Loss Accourt The schedules referred to above form an integral
referrad to in our report of even dale part of the Profit & Loss Acsount

For and on behall of the Board

Anupam Dhawan HK. Gupta SPArya Anil Bhalla Ranjan Shama Abhey Cswal
Pariner Comparny GM (Financa) Director Finance Chaimari 4 Managing
Membership No, F 084451 Secretary Director Dirsctor
Fer and on Behatf of
Prica Waterhousa
Chartered Accountanis
Place: New Delhi
Dated: 29ih June, 2004
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004

Year Ended’ Yoor adﬂd
March 31, 2004 March 31, 2003
Amount Amounl

{Fs. facs) (Rs. lacs}

A Cash flow from opaerating actlvities :

Net loss bofore tax (26,234,95) (34,601.99)
Adjusiments for:
Depreclation 17.586.72 18,843.06
Finan¢a Expense 30,582.83 35,500.82
Inieres) Income {404.10) (184.35)
(Profit)Loss on salefwrite off of Fixed Assels/CWIP B34.47 313
Deolerred revenus expendilure written off 523.05 523.05
Lessi(Profit) on sale/write off of Invasimeni 112.54 -
Liability na fonger required writlan back (668.81) (195,64}
T0S on Aent - (7.54)
Unrealised Foreign Exchange Fluctuation (65.95) 322,98
Provigiontwrite off lor bad & doubtful dabts/advances 134.38 18.84 -
Provision for Gratuity & Leave Encashment §8.53 33.08
Provision for y lar ob /i d ged stock - 238,41
Prigr Paricd Expenses/(Income) (Net) 358.52 1,026.11
Weallh Tax Provision 7.g7 4.70
Opsrating proflt bafore werking capital changas 20,865.20 21,444.22
Adjustrnants for changes in working capital :
- linctpase)/Dacrease in Sundry Dsbtary (7B7.04) 19,502.79
% - {Increase}Decrorse in Other Aecalvables 3a87.20 (140,48}
AN {Increase)/Decrease in Invéntories 728.08 (7,326.87)
- Increasa/(Dacraase) in Trade and Other Payablas 5,165.47 (7,912.97)
- IncreasefiDecraase) in Net Curreni Assers 5495.71 4,212.07
Cash generatsd {rom operalions 26,361.591 25,556.20
- Prior Pariod (Expenses)/income (Na1) (358.52) (a82.70)
Weanh Tax Faid [4.70) {4.26)
- Taxss Refund 314.21 78.24
Net cash fiom operating activitles 26,312.90 24,847.57
B. Cash flow fram Investing actvities:
Purchase of fixed assets (3,445 75} {1.702.534)
Praceads rom Sale o lixed assets 266.06 1015
(Purchase)/Sale of invesimens 106.74 (15.00)
Intorast Raceivad {Revenyus) 379.09 161.28
Net cngh used In investing activities {2,593.95) {1,545.81)
€. Cash flaw from financing actlvities:
Procasds from fong term-borrowings 1.856.95 1,216.59
Aspayments of lang {arm borrowings (12 .511.53} {6.569.31)
Procaads {Aepayments Yram short
term borrowings/cash credit (4,880.78) 5.647 .00
Financo Expenss Paid N {7.320.13) (24,781.92)
Dividend Paid . 0.21) (24.60) r‘y
Het cash used n flnancing activiies {23,055.70) {247502.27)
Nsi Incroase/{Decreass} in Cash & Cash Equivalents 663.34 (1,200.81)
Cash and cash equivaisnts as at $1.03.2003 . 2,071.11 3,271,712
Cash and Bank balances 2,071.11 3,2710.72
Cash snd cash squivalonis as at 31,03.2004 2,734.45 2,071.11
Cash and Bank balsnces . 2,734.45 2,071.11

Notas :

1 The above Cash flow statement has been preparsd unuar the indirect melhcd setout in AS-3 issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountanty of
India.

2 Figures in brackeis Indicate ¢ash outga.

3 Cash and cash aguivalents incl bal; wilh 1he scheduled bank under dividend payable accaunts Rs. 41.26 lacs (Previous Yaar Rs. 41.28
jacs} and Rs 2321.16 (Pravious Year Rs. 1265.72 lacs.}againsl the margin money [or Bank guarantess and Rs.33.79 lacs (Previous year Ra.
28.93 Lacs) apalnst Ihe security daposit received from employaas which are nol available for use by the company.

4 Following non cash transactions have not been considered in the cash llow statement,

- Tax daductad m source (on income} R8.30.75 Lacs [ Previous Year Rs.4B8.75 Lacs)
- Interest on long term loans  amounting As. NIL { Previous year Rs.1.04 lics) adjusiad against the procesds from loans.

This is tha Cash Flow referred Notes 1o accounts (Schedule XXI1) forms an inlegral Part of the Cash Flew Statemont

10 in our report of even dale For and on behall of the Boarg

Anugam Dhawan H.K. Gupta SPArya Anil Bhalia Ranjan Bhamma Abhiey Cswal

Partner Company GM (Finance) Directar Finance Chaiman & Managing

Mernbership No. F 084451 Secretary Diractor Director

For and on Bahalf of

Price Waterhouse

Chartered Acoountants

Plage: New Delhi

Dated: 29th June, 2604
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CEWAL

OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED
S&n_edules to Accounts ‘

=
Schedule | As At 31.03.2004 As At 31.03.2003
{Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
Share Capital (Note 17 On schedule XXN)
Authorised:
375,000,000 {Previous ‘Year 325,000,000) ’
Equily Shares of Rs.10/- each 37,500.00 32,500.00
27,500,000 {Previous Year 27,500,000)
Redeemable Preterence Shares of As.i00/-each 27,500.00 27,500.00
12,500,000 (Previcus Year Nil) Zero Percent Optional Convertible
Preterence Shares of Rs.100/-each 12,500.00 -
a 77.500.00 €0,000.00
Issued tilsubscrihed : o
266,809,158 (Pravious Year 256,808,159) Equity . .
Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 25,680.92 25,680.92
24,000,000 (Previcus Year 24,000,000) 10%Redeemable Non Cumulative
Preference Shares of Rs.100 each, fully paid up, redeemable on the
explry of 15 years from the date of aiotment i.e., 31st Oclober 2001 24,000.00 24.000.00
49,680.92 49,680.92
Schadule I
Reserves & Surplus
Debenture Redemption Reserve * 4,549.94 4,549.94
Share Premium Account 44,252 90 44,252.90
Capital Redemption Reserve 5,860.00 5,860.00
TOTAL 54,662.84 54,662.84
‘ Note 26 on Schedule XX
Schedule W
Secured Loans (Nete 15,17 and 21 on Schedule XXI1)
A Débentures
) 11,00,000(Previous Year 11,00,000) 12.5%
Secured Non-Convartible Redeemable Dabentures
ol As.100/- each Fully Paid up outstanding
amount Rs.7.14 each (Previous Yeac Rs.24 29 each) 78.48 274,91
iy  80,00,000 (Previous Year 80,00,000) - 16% Secured
Nen-Converlible Redeemable Debentures of Rs.100/-
Fully paid up cutstanding amount Rs.100 each
(Previous Year Rs 100/- each) 8,000.00 8,000.00
i) 18,7500Q{Previous Year 18,75,000) 15.5% Secured
Non-convertible Hedeemable Debentures of Rs. 100/~
each Fully Paid up cutstanding Amount Rs, 100/- each
{Pravious Year As. 100/~ each) 1.875.00 1,875.00
iv)  3,39,00,00¢ (Previous Year 3,39.00,000) - 14.031%
{Previous Year 16.031%) Secured Non-Canvertible
Redeemable Debenture of Rs. 100/- each Fully Paid up
oulstanding Amount Rs. 100/- each 7
(Previous Year As. 100/- each) 33.900.00 33,900.00
Interest Accrued And Due 2,791.32 4,337.06

Comd........ on page na. 16
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL

Contd..... from page no. 15 As At 31.02.2004 As At 31.03.&&
{Rs.in Lacs) (As.in Laks)
B. Term Loans:-
) RUPEE TERMLOANS
- From Financial Institutions 95,431.56 78,372.27
- From Banks 57.665.54 51,795.34
Interest Accrued And Due
- On Term Loans from financial Institution 1008 8,531.21
- On Term Loans from Banks - 200.52
C. Working Capital Loans - From Banks 39,190.89 4337187
- From Others 2,600.00 3.500.00
Inierest Accrued And Due
- On Working Capital Loan from Banks 18.39 -
- On Working Capital Loan from others - ‘v 90.34
D. Interest Free Loan From The Pradeshiya Industrial & -
Investment Corporation of Uttar Pradesh Limited (PICUP) 7.274.76 7.254.52
249,636.02 242,302.84
Notes:
1. Dabaritures and tsrm loans are sacured by morgage un whale of he movabla propartias save and axcept bogk debis of the Comparry subjoct o chames crealed10 be crealed in favour
¢ meCa;‘xmy' '3 Dankérs for working cabilal requirements, Theao are lurther secured t}yaﬁolnl morigage createdito ha created in favour of all the finangial inatitylions and banks
y way of deposit of the tila deads with raspedt 1o Ine Company's immovahis proparties ather Ihan as raterred i in nola 2 below).
2 | Termloans aqqrogaung to As.2410 Iacs (pmvlous yoar Rs.2410.43 1acs) trom a bank are furthar secured by margage by way of deposil of Ue deeds ol immavable propenics el viago
" 8alzgarh, Disinct Dawas, Madhya
3 Debenlures are rotgemable 4t par in 28 Quarterty ingtaiments &s balow:
A} 19.5% Securgd Redeemabla Non Convertibl Debantures of Rs.100 gach commanced fram Navembar 15, 1997,
B} 16% Secured Redeemabie Non Convartiblg D of Rs. 100 sac Irom Decamber 15, 2003,
C) 15,50% Secured Redeamable Non Convartible Dabenturea of As 100 2ach commancing from Decamber 15, 2003
[s}] 14,0121% Secured Redesmable Non Converible Debenturas of Bs, 100 each commencing rom January 15. 2006,
4 w mpualloansfmm banks and othars are sooumd first cha 'rﬁeby way ol hypothocation ol thewhtle of the clrront assets and bock debls of the Comparyy. These ate furthor
ge o & foint mo wour of sl tha kandars [of working capiial requiraments oy way of deposit af tha like dasds with raspec! io the Company’'s
immcvahlu urupurlles (omerlhan a5 referred toin nulnz abave),
5. Tha above loans, othe; than weorking capital koans from others, are guaranieed by the Managing Director,
.3 Loans from PICUP is secured by second charge on the mavai¥a assels ang immavelble fred assals of the Shahjanenpu: larilizee plant of Lhe Gompany and shall rank pari passu with
the chatqes creatad for sacuring working capilal lacitities.
Schedule IV

(Note 3(ij(aj, 3(i)(b} on Sehedule XXI)

Fixed Assets (Rs.In Lacs)
Gross Block Doprecintion Net Block

Partlculprs As ol AdditionfAdju-  Sale/Adjust- As at up to For the  Writen Back/ up to Ag at Az mt

01.04.2003 siment during  sment during 31.03.2004 ©1.04.2003 Your  Adusied Cur- 31.03.2004 31012004 31.06.2003
tha year 1he year ing the year

Land

~Leasahetd * 100578 1,005.78 BREG 1020 .03 926,75 936.95

-Frashold 37257 - - W25 - - - 3rz57 25T

-Site Dovelopmant B.486.7) - - 646673 152.82 B/ 22023 821750 631391

Building .

-Loaaghold 2068 - - fts] Ly Q5 - 215 25 2898

-Frsghold == 20.571.34 ;0305 1036 20p44.03 481810 92967 ags 553011 1530492 15.853.24

Plant & Machinery 325,906.83 2379 120012 3T07T.02 194,14428  15943.42 20178 129,880,894 19718108 21176255

Plani & Machinery -

held for disposal “** 983725 - - 9.837.35 Q87017 2084 - g,191.67 G524 567.08

Machinery Spares 1,008.44 051 - 1,008.35 223.96 a142 . 30478 04,17 78508

Fumiture & Fixture 90674 927 168 81333 665.32 508 24 Ti4.48 198.87 24042

i 211318 - 23 210477 150379 17373 7

Total 366218.52 2682.14 124855 360.661.%1 13024837 17.586.72 219.56 147 81553 22204558 2374735

Pravious Year 383,9G7. 4.456.99 17611 36821852 M42475 1884303 19.41 120.248.37

Capia! Work In Prograss** ™" 807265 5,480.58

TOTAL 22811823 24345973

* Incductes land amounting to Rs. 6.07 laca (Previous Year Rs 8.07 lacs) focated at Paradesp, and Re. 6.82 lact (Pravioua Yoar s, 0.82 Jacs) Located &1 Mandideep.
Ihe Lease Doed in raspect of which i yai ic be execulod and alse Inctudes 7 acres land sanmarkad for consinuction of a hospital by Aruna Abhey Oswal Trust.

““Includes Railway Sidings, costing As.527.84 lacs {Pravious Year Ra 52784 lacs) notlocated on Company'sland,
Jat realisable valua based on management’s astimala |s more than the bock value, hence vaiued at their book value

**** Capitat Work in Prograss includas Capital Advance Rs 451.14 Lacs | Pravious Yaar Rs.496.31 Lacs)
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CSWAL

SGZEdula v : As At 31.03.2004 As At 31.03.2003
{Rs.in lags} (Rs.in lacs)
Investments - Long Term - Non Trade (Notas 5(a) & (b) and 12 on Schedule XXil)
A. Quoled (Long Term)
In Equity Shares (Fully Paid Up)
152000 (Previous Year 152000} Equity Shares Of
Rs.10/- Each Of Nashville Investment & Trading Co. Lid. 13.81 13.81
500000 (Previous Year 500000) Equity Shares Of Monnet
Industrigs Ltd O! Rs.10/-Each at a premium Of As.30/-Each - 200.00
8324095 (Previous Year B324069) Equity Shares
Of Rs. 10/ Each Of Oswal Agro Mills Ltd 4,894 85 4,884.85
160000 {Previous Year 160000) Equity Shares
of Hs.mé Each Of Oswal Agro Furane Ltd - 3.28
B. Government Securlties:
Unguoted:-
In Govt. Securitias 7 Years National Ptan
Saving Certificate (Lodged
with Govt, Authorities) 0.21 1.21
C.Cthers ~ Unquoted 9.57 9.57
D.UTI Variable Investment Scheme-Unguoted - 15.00
4,908.44 5,127.72
Aggregate Book Value:
Quoted Investments 4.898.66 . 5,101.94
Unguoted Investments 9.78 26.78
Schedule VI
Dgter. Tax A labilit ) ote 16_on schedule XXil
Brought Forward 101,96 (12,532.98)
During the year
Add: Deferred Tax Assets
Carry torward Losses N {385.97)
Unabgorbed Dapreciation ) §,435.11
Ofhgf Timing Difference * 7.664.17
Less: Deferred Tax Liability
Fixed Assals * 3157485
Delerred Revenuva Expenditure ' (205.48)
Less: Deferred Tax Assel written off 101,96 —
Carrled Forward - 101.96
*Refar Note 16 on schedule XXII
Schedule Vil
INYENTORIES
Raw Materials 65,066.47 3,965.01
Work In Progress 3,626.42 1,663.26
Finished Goods 23.022.22 28,462.88
Stlores & Spares {including n Transit Rs. 386.74 Lacs- 6,944.86 6,306.84 .
Pravious Year As.51.48 Lacs) 7
Loose Tools 0.37 ~ 043
38,660.34 " 40380.42
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL

_1:

Schedule VIl As Al 31.03.2004 As At 31.03.2002
(Rs. in Lacs} {As. in Lacs)
Sundry Debtors {Considared Good)
Over Six Months
Secured 13.07 17.42
Unssecured 12,5648.39 22,853.88
Others
Secured 119.67 54,03
. Unsecured 34,424,18 23,392.94
47,105.31 46,318.27
Schedule IX iy
Cash & Bank Balances ‘-_,f‘
Cash & Gheques [n Hand Including Postage imprest 293.17 166.00
Balances With Scheduled Banks
Current Accounts 32.37 42,00
Dividend Accounts( Refar schedule XI) * 41.26 41.26
Fixed Daposit ** 2,321.36 1,740.92
Margin Maney 12.50 52.00
Employae Security Deposit-Fixed Depasit 272 27.22
Employse Security Deposit-Saving Bank Account 1.07 .7
2,734.45 207111
“* Pledged against Bank Guarantees and Letters of Credits Rs.2,321.16 Lacs
(Previous Year As.1,269.72 Lacs)
Schedule X
Loans & Advances (Notes 13 & 20 on gschedule XXII)
(Unsecured and Considered Good Unless Otherwise Staled)
Advances Recoverable In Cash or in
kind or for vatue to be received 3.182.18 3,570.07 3504,51
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances 139.23 3,042.96 65.58
Interest Accrued but not dus on Deposits 58.25 63.99
Balanca With Centra! Excise Eig. 15.29 Loo01
Security Deposits 475.79 “\:35{ 10
..3,592.29 ~4N961
Schedule Xi
Current Labilltles (Note 7&9 on schedule XXIt}
Sundry Creditors .
i  Total outstanding dues of Small Scale Industrial
Undeartakings 1.68 20.54
i) Total outstanding dues of Creditors Other Than
Small Sgale Industrial Undertakings 15,776.40 12,236.18
Detferred Income 2,628.81 1,969.11
Provisicn for Zero Goupon Optionally Convertible Preterence Shares 2,185.95 -
Advances from Customers 1,639.49 1,169.09
Qther Liabilities 2,755.44 2,867.41
Investors Education & Protection Fund
{Appropriate amount shall be transferred to “Investor
Education and Protection Fund” (f and whean due}
-Unpaid Dividends {refer schedule IX) * 41.50 a1.71
-Unpaid Application Money - 9.78
-Unpaid Matured Detenture & Interest Due thereon 13.29 253.53
Interest accrued but not dua 437713 5,528.68
28,323.69 24,096.03

* Under Reconciliation
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

OBWAL

Scﬁedule xn As At 31.03.2004 As At 31.03.2003
(Rs. in lacs) {Rs. in lacs)
Provisions
Gratuity 266.23 208.65
Leava With Wageas 123.48 92.53
Wealth Tax i7.97 4.70
Currant Tax (Net of Advance Tax Rs 654.84 Lacs Previous Year Rs.367.09 Lacs) 880.77 607.31
1,298.45 913.19
Schedule X Foer The Year For The Year
Ended on 31.03.2004 Ended on 31.3.2003
Lo
Profit on Sale of Assets 7.62 1.92
tnterast Concession Received - 185.86
fntarest on Fixed Deposits - Gross (TDS Rs.30.75 Lacs 404.10 184.36
Previcus Year Rs.38.81 Lacs)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation . 352.98
Miscellaneous Income 756.08 582.18
Previsien no longer required written back 668.81 195.64
2,189.59 1,149.96
Schecdule XV
Haw Material Consumplion
QOpening Stock 3,965.01 5,407.59
Add: Purchases 47,985.66 58,327.61
51,960.67 63.735.20
Less: Closing Stock 6,066.47 3,965.01
45,834.20 59,770.19
Schedule XV
Qther Manufacturing Expenses
Storgs.Lonsumed * 5,272.20 5,516.90
Packing Materiat Consumed 2,566.43 3,008.79
Power & Fua! . 25,066.27 18,922.99
Others 516.96 146,73
Repairs - Building 27.89 g84.12
- Machinery 606.34 585.98
- Others 112.48 82.98
34,167.57 28,348.49
“ Excluging Charged to other Revenue Heads As 133.95 Lacs
{ Previous Year Rs, 356.41 Lacs)
Schedule X¥i
ees' Cost (Note 19 on_schedul i}
Salaries, Wagas, Bonus and other Alowances 2,721.13 - 312251
Cantribution to Provident Fund & Employees State Insurance 144.81 158.74
Wetfare Expenses 151.53 218.95
3,617.47 3.500.20
Schedule XVil
Selling Expenses
Fraight & Handling Charges 9,705.64 12,874.71
Rebate & Discounts 471.83 ner
Commission - 9.63
Other Selling Expenses 1,987.30 6,605.35
12,164.77 19,809.42
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED oISwWaAL
. A
Scheduls XviN For The Year Far The Y{:r
Ended on 31.03.2004 Ended on 31.2.2083
(Rs.in lacs) {Rs.in lacs)
Einance Expenses
Interest - On Fixed Leans 17,910.45 21,147,417
-On Debentures 7.392.74 7.913.57
- On Othars 4,627.68 5,798.79
Bank Charges 342.76 641.05
30.273.63 35,500.82
Echedule XIX
eNns [+] 1 [:] 1}
Rent 88.72 1B
Rates & Taxes 88.40 Y123.40
Insurance T776.29 -~"096.76
Fareign Exchange Fluctuation - 267.58
Loss on Saleritaoff of Assets 842.00 5.05
Other General Expenses 1,617.39 1,789.24
Provision for Obsolete Steres - 238.41
Bad Debt/Advances Written Cft/Provided 134.38 18.84
Miscellangous Expenditure Written off 523.05 523.05
4,069.32 4,124.04
Schedule XX
t toflnc BDecr!
o¢ is Work in Pro
Opening Stock
Finished Goods 28,462.88 16,976.74
Work In Progress 1.653.26 2,624.57
30,116.14 19,601.31
Less : Closing Stock
Finished Goods 23,022.22 28,462.88
Work In Progress 3,626.42 1,653.26
26,648.64 30,116.14
3,467.50 (10.5{4,_83)
Schedule X))
Prior Pefiod Adjustments
Cther Generat Expanses 344.34 312.90
Miscellaneous Income {1.16) (27.18)
Rates & Taxes 15.34 748,39
Depraciation Written Back - {7.89)
Depraciation 4171 -
Interest 308.20 . -
708.43 1,026.12

SCHEDULE XXl
NOTES TO THE ACCOUNTS
1. Significant Accounting Pollches ;
a. Accounting Conventlon

The financial statements are prepared under historical cost convention on accrual basis in-accordance with the mandatory

accounting siandards read with notes and relevant presentational requirements of the Companies Act, 1956,

b. Fixed Assets and Depreclation

—

All the fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes all incidentas expenditure net of
MODVAT/CENVAT wheraver applicable. The Company provides for depreciation as follows:
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F

1)  Urea Division
Urea and Powsr Generation plants: On the basis of technical evaluation of the useful life. Accordingty, the Company
is charging depreciation @ 25% on Written Down Value (WDV) of the assets. The other assets are depreciated on
WDV basis at the rates provided in Schaduie XIV 1o the Companies Act, 1958.

i} LDPE division
Plant and Machinery at the rates delermined o the basis of technological re-evaluation of the useful life of the plant
from the date the assels were put to use after modification/aduitions. Accordingly, depreciation is being provided @
35 % on WDV of the assets, The other assets are depreciated on WDV basis at the raies provided in Schedule XIV to
the Companias Act, 1656,

iy Di-Ammeonium Phosphate (DAP) Division
Process Plant & Machinery on Straight Line Method (SLM) basis at the rates pravided in Schedula X)V to the Coempanies
Act applicable to continuous process plant as par technical avaluation. Maring material handling equipment instalied on
' the lease hold land is amortized over the pesiod of lease. Pipes & fitfings, electrical installations, storage tanks are
depreciated on SLM basis 1 the rates provided in Schedule X1V to the Companies Act, 1956 applicable to genera! plant
& machinery cther than continuous process plant. Railway siding at 20% per annum. The othar assets are depreciated
on WDV basis at the rates provided in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

iv} Other Divisions
On SLM basis at the rates provided in Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956.

v] Leasehold Premium/improvement
Leasehold premium/improvement is baing amortized/deprecialad aver the period of lease.

vl} Capital Spares
Capita! spares are being depreciated over the balance useful lives of the related plant and machinery.

c. investments
Long term invesimants are stated ai cost less provision, if any, for diminution in value of such investments other than
temporary, Current investments are stated at lower of tost and fair value.

d. Inventarles
Raw materigls, components, finished goods, work in progress and stores & spares are valued at cost ar net realisable
value, whichever is lower. Realisable value of Lirea and DAP is inclusive of the Retention Price Cencession as nofified by
the Government of India. The basis of determining cost for various categaries of inventories is as fallows:
» 1] Stores and Spares, Raw materials and Packing materials Whaighted average cost
\f‘ iy Woark in Progress and Finished Goods Materia! cost plus appropriate share of labour and
production ¢verheads

@. Revenue Recognition
Sales are recognised upon the transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership 1o the customers. Concession on
Urea under Group Pricing Scheme is recognised as per the price natified by Government of India and is subject to
adjusimant on finalization of escalalion claim on inputs as and when notified. Equated freight on urea is recognised as
income on its accrual. Concession on DAP/NP is racognised at provisional rates nolified by Govl. of India which are subject
to ravision based on a study carried out by Govt. of India.
Income from invesiments and Interast are accounted for on accrual basis. Income/ loss from share in Association gf
Persons (AOP) is accounted for on receipt of intimation from respective AOP,

f. Foreign Exchange Transactions
Transactions in foreign currency are recorded at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of the transactions except for
goods in transit and related liabilities, which are stated at tha exchange rate prevailing at the year end. Liability in respect
of imparted materials remaining unpaid are stated at the exchange rates pravailing at the year end,
In case of Farward Exchange Contracts, the difference betwaen the forward rate and the exchange rata at the date of
transacticn is recognized as currency fluctuation in the Profit & Loss Account over the life of the contract.

g. Retirements Beneflts

Contribution to provident fund scheme is charged to the profit and loss account as incurred. Liability for gratuity and leave
encashment is provided on the basis of actuarial vaiuation carried out at the year endg,
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED DISWAL

h.

Borrowing Costs : -
Borrowing costs attributable o the acquisition or construction of qualifying assats are capitalisad as part of the cost urﬂhar
agset upto the date when such assets are ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are charged as an expehse in
the year in which they are incurred.

Taxation

Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income lor the period. Deferrad tax is
recognised, subject 1o considerations of prudence, on timing differances, baing the difference between taxable income
and accounting income that criginate In one period and are capable of reversa! in one or more subsequent periods,

Miscellaneous Expenditure-Deferrad Revenue Expenditure

Preoperative Expenditure incurred by the Company upto the date of cammencement of commercial operations not directly
atributable to fixed assets is troated as Deferred Revenue Expenditure to be wriften off over a period of three 1o five
years,

2. Estimated amount of Contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and nt providad for {net of advanéo,!ls. 725.25
lacs (Previcus Year Rs.1190.36 facs),

(As.in Lacs}

3. Contingent Liabilities not provided for in respact of : Year ended Year ended

f

(i

(i)

4. (a)
(b}
5. (a)

(b

March 31, 2004 March 31, 2003
a) Land reference cases filed by land owners for additional

compensation {excluding interest) 84.80 84.80
b) Disputed cost of motor vehicle purchased 69.00 59.00
¢} Electricity duty on captive generation of power at Paradeep

disputed by the Company 921.86 772.03

Amount not

d) Demands/show cause notices received from Sales Tax department, 369 65 quantifiable

e) Demand received for water charges disputed by the company. 368.52 -

t}  Demand received for Entry Tax in Orissa 527.39 £27.39

g) Demand for minimum guaranteed wharfage, disputed by the Campany. 1018.46 408.12
h)  Custom Duty on Raw Material imported tor DAP Unit is subject to final

assessment by the Custom Authorties. Amount not Amount rot

quantitiable quantifiable

I} Other cfaims against the Company not acknowledged as debts 1458.54 1274.43

With a view to encourage setting up of fertilizer plants in the ceuniry, the Government of India has been following a policy
of granting the facility of duty free impon of plant and machinery requireg for setting up the feniilizer plants. The Company
has imported certain equipment for setting up fertilizer plants at Shahjahanpur and Paradeep and has furnished uncfytakings
1o customs autharities at the tima of clearance of consignments. The liability, if any, would be ascertainable on tha final
reconciliation by customs authorities.

The Gevernment had levied an Impart Pass Fee amounting 10 Rs.42.85 lacs for import of industrial aleohol in the State of
West Bangal. The Company has challenged the levy and the matter s currently pending in the Calcuita High Court, The
management is of the view that no provisions need to be made, as the matter is subjudice.

The Income Tax Department has completed assessments and raised demands amounting to Rs.3411.17 lacs for assessment
years 1898-99, 1998-00, 2000-01 & 2001-02. No provision has been made for the same since the Company has been
legally advised that these demands are not sustainable and has filed appeais before appropriate authorities. Furiher,
assessmant year 2002-03 invoives certain issues including these which are similar in nature for which assessment has
been completed during the year.

Further, the Income Tax Department raopened the nent for ent year 1995-96 on the basis of a statemant
by one of the machinery suppliers of the Company before the settlemant commission ang raised a demand for Rs.217.67
lacs against which the Company has lited an appeal with the appropriate authority. Mo provision has been made lor the
samme since, in the opinion of managemsnt, the demand is not susiainable.

Investments (Schedule V) include equity shares in Oswal Agro Mills Limited (CAML) amounting to Rs.4,884.85 lacs, The
market vaiue of these investments as at March 31, 2004 stands &t Rs.120.70 lacs. However, the marke! vake of the
Ppropertyfinvestments held by OAML is significantly higher than their cost and therefore the break up value of these equity
shares is higher than the cast of acquisition of such shares.Tha diminution in value of this investment is considered
temporary and accordingly no provision is considered necessary in this regard.

Market valus of quoled investments at the close of the year was Rs.124.50 lacs (Previous Yoear Rs.342.78 lacs).
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6. A downward revision in retention price for 7 and 8" pricing periods ended on March 31, 2003 was notified by tha Government
of India (GO) vide notification dated September 13, 2002 and April 10, 2003 due to implementation of policy paramaters resulting
in a refund of an estimated amount of Rs.21,768.92 lacs. The Company has earlier filed a writ petition agazinst the GO before
the Hon'ble Delhi High Court contesting the basis adopted for calculation of retention grice and obtained a stay agains! the
recovary from the Hon'ble Delhi High Court and has accordingly not provided for the aforesaid refund. The Company has bean
legally advised that there will not be any material liability on the Company.

7. As per informalion available with the Company, total outstanding dues to Small Scala Industrial Undertakings {Schedule XI)
includa Chemtrols Enginaering Ltd. and Khandetwal Industries, whose dues are outstanding for more than 30 days.

{Rs.In Lacs)

8. Salé‘s Include : Year ended Year ended

- March 31, 2004 March 31, 2003
Goncession on Urea (including arrears for Earlier Years As.2934.17 lacs —
Previous Year net of recovery As.541.08 lacs). 25420.94 15245.56
Equated Freight on Urea (including arrears for Previous Years Rs. NIL lags —
Previous Year Rs.623.58 lacs). 3663.52 4210.15
Concession on DAP/NP 14267.72 15822.97

9. A detailed exerciss is in progress 1o reconcile various accounts (both debit and credit, the aggregate net debit balance being
Rs.114.44 lacs with suppliers of the DAP Division. Adjustments, if any, arising from these exercises, which are not likely to be
material, will be accounied for on completion of the same.

A similar reconcitiation exercise is being carried out for the interest payable to the eastwhile debenturehclders and bondholders.
Panding completion of the reconciliation, the company has paid Rs.250.07 !acs during the year 1o certain dabeniusreholders
based on claims received from them,

10. Pre-opsrative expenditura incurred on DAP Division and not attributable to the construction aclivity is being written off over a
period of 3-5 years from the date of commercial production i.e. 17 April, 2001 as per details given below:

Balance brought forward 1569.16 2092.21
Less : Written off during the year 523.05 523.05
Total 1046.11 1569.16

", ‘9if§ctors' Ramuneration :

Salary & allowances 54.00 54.00

Contribution 1o Provident Fund 6.48 6.48

Parguisites 52.23 45.86

Sitting Fees 2.80 210

Total 115.51 108.44
Notas :

12.

13,

14.

{a)  Provisions lor gratuity and feave encashment have been made on a group basis and separate figures applicable to an individual employee
are not available and therefore have not bean considered in the above figures,
(6}  The abova remuneration other than sitting ‘e is subject to approval of Central Governmeant,

The Company is a member of {I) Shanenjula Syndicate, Bombay, () Sagar Corporation, Bombay () Universal Associates,
Bombay being Associations of Persons (AOPs) and is entitied to 88%, 89% and 99% share of profitfloss respectively, The
fotal amount invested in these AOP's is Rs.9.57 lacs (Previcus Year Rs.9.57 lacs). The share of profit from these AOPs
amaunting to Rs.0.65 lacs {Previous Year Loss Rs.0.93 lacs ) has been accounted for in the Company's books,

{Rs. in Lecs)
As at As at
March 31, 2004 March 31, 2003
Loans and Advances as given in Schedule X include:
Maximum Amount due from Directors and Secretary at any time during the year 1.58 0.23

Auditars' Remuneration:

Audit Fee 21.00 15,00
Cacrtification work 6.00 3.00
Other Services 9.00 8.00
Qut of Pocket Expenses (including service lax) 6.97 5.65
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15.

18

20.

21.

22,

23,

24,

Tha amount of U.P. Trade Tax an Urea collected during the period 1.3.2003 10 28.2 2004 amounting to Rs.1180.18 lacs (Prevjous
Year Rs.1216.59 lacs) has been converted into Interest Free Loan as per Agreement executed with The Pradeshiya
industrial & Investment Corporation of Uttar Pradesh Limited (PICUP). The said loan is repayable on the expiry of five years from
tha year of collection. The U.P. Trade Tax collected during March, 2004 amounting 1o Rs.17.76 lacs {Ptevious Year Rs.17.63
lacs), pending conversion into ‘Interest Free Loan' is included under the head “Current Liabilities”.

In view of continued losses and principles of prudence,.the Company has written off deferred tax asset (net) of Rs.101.96 lacs
brought forward from previous year and has a'so not recognized acditional deferred tax asset (net} for the year.

Financial Instituions have an aption ¢ conver a part of their term loansidebeniures amounting to Rs.34711.41 facs (Previous
Year Rs.33000.56 lacs) into equity shares of the Company at any time during the cufrgncy of loan. Additionally, Financial
institutions aiso have a right to convert their loans/dabentures amounting to Rs.128084.36 tacs (Previous Year Rs.102482.80
lacs) in the avent of defautt as stipulated in 1he respective loan agreements.

. The Company and other consumers of natural gas on the HBY pipeline have been informed by Gas Authority o! Ingia Ltd. that

prices of natural gas being supplied 1o the Company may be revised w.e.(. 1.4.2000. There is alsc & possibility of levy of excise
duty and central sales tax on natural gas. The quantum of these liabilities is unascenainable and addiional costs, Jif any, are
reimbursable 1o the Company by the Government of India under retention price schema for Urea.

Employee cost {Schedule XVi) and Administrative expenses (Schedule XIX) are net of Rs.249.43 lacs being estimated amount
of expenses incurrad on behalf of a group company which have subsaquently been reimbursed to the Company.

Loans and advances {Scnedule X) includes As.50 lacs being amount of cash seized during the year by the Income Tax
autherities under section 132 of the Income Tax Act, 1961. The company has applied 1o the appropriate authorily for release of
the cash seized.

The Oabt Restructuring Scheme for secured (oans of OAP Division of the Caompany has been appraved by the Corporata Debt
Restructuring Cell and all lenciers, other than Unit Trust of India, subject to compliance of certain terms and conditions including
the issus of Zero Percent Optionally Convertible Preference Shares as compensation for the interest reset {fer the antire tenure
of term loans) by the financial Institutions/Banks estimated to be Rs.10,651 lacs. Pending confirmation of the amount frorms
respective lenders, the Company has pravided for Rs.2,186 lacs, being the net present value as on 1% April, 2003 of the amgunt
of inlerest reduction for the year endad 31* March, 2004 required 1o be compensated in the above manner. Pending issue of
Preference Shares, this amount has been included under current ligbilities (Schedule XI). Further, the funded inlerest amount
has been converted o Funded interest Term Loan amaunting to Rs.12,56%.99 lacs as per the said Scheme by some lenders,
which is pending confirmationsreconciliation.

Schadula X includes Rs. Nil (Previous Year Rs.218.98 lacs) being unexpired foreign exchange fluctuation on account of tarward
exchange contracts outstanding at the year end.
Eamning Per Share (EPS) - Numerators and Denominators usad to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share:

{Rs.‘k.q lacs)

Year ended Year-‘ended
March 21, 2004 March 31, 2003

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders {Rs.)/(A) 2,83,36,90,812 2,20,47,08,745
Basic/Weighted average of Equity Shares outstanding during the year (B) 25,68,09,159 25,88,09,159
Nominal Value of Equity Shares (Rs.) 10 10
Basic/Diluted Earning per share (Rs.) (A)/(B) (11.03} (8.58)

Note : None of the potential equity shares have dilutive effect during the current year.
Related Party Disclosures.
{A} Felated parties and transactions with them as identified by the management are given below:
{a} Major Shareholders
Mr. Abhey Oswal along with relatives and other associates holds 54.21% shares of the Company.
(b) Key Management Personnel and their relatives:
Mr. Anil Bhalla
Mr. Ranjan Sharma
Mrs. Poonarm Sharma (Wita of Mr. Ranjan Sharrma)
(c) Enterprises over which Major Shareholders, Key Management Personnel and ll'!eir ralatives have significant influence:-
Oswal Agro Mills Limited, Star Advertising Pvi. Limited, Aruna Abhey Oswal Trust, Lucky Star Entertainment Limited,
Atul Properties Limited.

Enterprises under the control of the Company.
Shanenjula Syndicate {Associalion gl Persons)
Sagar Corporation (Association of Persons)
Universal Associales (Association of Persons)

(d
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f&) Transactions with Related Parties in the ordinary course of busingss.
I Rs. in Lacs
Type of Relationship Nature of Transactions Valume of Transactions
2003-04 2002-03
a) Major Shareholders Managerial Remuneration 35.26 36.76
h} Key Management
Personnel & their relatives Managerial Remureration 77.45 69.57
Rent paid 10.80 10.80
c) Enterprises over which major shareholders
and key Managerment Personnel have
significant influence Rent paid 12.00 12.00
Services availed 16.90 362.46
Payments made by Company on their behalf 118,71 207.25
Their share of common expenses 249.45 -
Funds Received by Company 313.59 4955.07
A Payments raceived by Company on their behali 0.58 54.50
o Payments made on behalf of Company 11.66 0.29
- Adjustment of funds received - 5705.75
d) Enterprises under the ¢ontrel of the Cempany  Prefit(Loss} of ADPs 0.65 {0.93)
Balances outstanding at year end:
Enterprises over which major shargholders
have significant influence - invgstments 4884.85 4884.85
- Receivable 36.54 -
- Payable 0.09 -
Enterprises under the conirel of the Company - Investments 9.57 9.57

25. The Company is operating mainly under a single segment i.e. “Fertilizers”, comprising of Urea and Di-ammonium phosphate.
Although ihe Company has certain other units which are closed, the value of assets and iiabitities of these units is not sigificant
and therefore there is ne repartable segment in terms of the provisions of AS 17 "Segment Reporting” issued by the Institute of

Chartered Accountants of India.

28. No amount has been transferred to Debenture Redemption Reserve in view of losses during the year.
27. Although the DAP plant has been incuring cash iosses, remadial steps have been taken by the management by way of :

a) increasing the capacity utilization levels,

B} increasing the market share, especially in view of better monsoon,

¢} restructuring he long ierm loans and
d} reducing the interast cost.

Accordingly, the accounis have been prepared on a gaing concern basis.
28. Previous year's figures have been re-grouped/re-arranged wherever necessary to conform te the current year's presentation.
29. Agiditional informalion required under para 3 & 4 of Part Il of Schedule V) of the Companies Act, 1956 is as follows:-

A PARTICULARS OF LICENCED/REGISTERED/INSTALLED ANNUAL CAPACITIES/PAODVUCTION

Licencad/Regisiered Capacity Installed Capacity# Producticn
As Al As At As At As At For the year For the year

Clags of Goods Unit 31.03.2004 31.03.2003 31.03.2004 31.03.2003 ended 31.03.2004  ended 31.03.2003
AMMONIA Ml 1350/Day 1350/Day 1350/Day 1350/Day 494506.800 468593.200
UREA MT 2200/Day 2200/Day 2200/Day 2200/Cay 857802,150 814488800
DAP/NPK/NP MT 1820000/Annum  1820000/Annum  1920000MmLm 1920000 ATLr 331160.905 717258880
LCNY DERSITY POLYETHYLENE Mr 15357 15357 13000 13000 - .
SOLVENT EXTRACTIONPLANT Mr 80000 80000 0000 90000 .-

¥ Tha installed capacities have been taken as cerlified by the Technical heads of the respective Plants and nol verified by the Auditors being a technlcal

matier,

B PARTICULARS OF SALE §

For the year ended 31.03.2004 .

For the year ended 31.03.2003

Class of Goods Unit Quantity Value Quantity Vahe
{As.in lacs) {Rs.in lacs)

UAEA MT 900723.550 70967.9% 778092.250 " 55627.75
DAP M 381746.010 47023.32 618479.300 68926.52
NP MT 31110.200 2882.48 —_ -
GYPSUM MT 5783050 10.57 10602.310 21.26
120884.36 124575.53

§ Sales excludes wastages and losses.



OSWAL.CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED SSWAL
€ OPENING AND CLOSING STOCKS OF GOODS PRODUCED ‘."?

As Al 31.03.2004

As At 31.03.2003

As at 31.03.2002

Class of Goeds Unit  Quantity Velue Quantity Value Quantity Velue
(Rs.in lacs) {Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in lags)
UREA MI B7395.150 4473.79 131870.80 5962.8¢ 96436 .550 4146.00
DAP MT 139611,155 1711242 238259.65 22500.08 150778.100 12830.74
NP MT  16447.550 1430.01 - -
=2 " 28462.88 T 16876.74
D RAW MATERIAL CONSUMED o '
For Ihe year ended 31.03.2004 Far the ysar ended 31.03.2003
Class of Goods Unit Quantity Valug Quantily -+ Valug
(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in facs)
NATURAL GAS Mitficn SM 3 34224 14082.78 322.432 1315510
ROCK PHOSPHATE M7 577244 59 13619.74 1361484 25557.77
AMMONLA MT 8168412 1135267 157823 11862.41
SULPHUR MT 17202877 674967 347875 . 8621.09
SULPHURIC ACID M - - 8552 44 .80
OTHERS 89.34 526.02
4589420 58770.19
E. OTHER ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Faor the year Forthe year
ended 31.03.2004 ended 31.03.2003
Value Vale
{Rs. In lacs) [As.in lncs)s
(@ CIFVALUE OF IMPORT
RAW MATERIAL 3116388 39263.47
COMPONENTS & SPARE PARTS 554.89 1100.33
CAPITAL GOODS 717.50 -
32876.27 40383.80
(b} EXPENDITUREIN FOREIGN CURAENCY
ONTECHNICAL KNOWHOW 37279 19,49
NAPHTHA 6754.28 1439.60
INTEREST 19.48 6122
OTHERMATTERS 102.22 Y31,
7248.78 .1597.62

F.  VALUE OF IMPORTEDANDIGENQUS RAW MATERIAL, SPARE PARTS, COMPONENTS AND STORES CONSUMED

Faor the Yaar ended 31.03.2004

For tha year ended 31.03.2003

CLASS OF GOODS Valus % Value
{Rs.in lacs) (Bs. lnlacs}
RAW MATERIALS
INDIGENOUS 1417213 3088 13684 12 22.89
IMPORTED 31722.07 69.12 4608607 71
45884 20 100.00 5577012 100.00
STORES, SPARES PARTS & COMPONENTS
INDIGENOUS 4376.52 80.95 3995.56 58.42
IMPORTED 1022.63 19.05 1872.73 31.58
5408.15 100.00 5873.31 109.0¢
Signaturas 10 schedules 1 e XXII For and On behalf ol the Board
H.K. Gupta SPAra Anil Bhalla Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Comparty GM (Finance) Director Finance Chaiman & Managing
Secretary Director Director

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 29th June, 2004



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

CISWAL.

¥

4 BALANCE SHEET ABSTRACT AND COMPANY'S GENERAL BUSINESS PROFILE AS PER
PART IV OF THE SCHEDULE VI TO THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956

. Regisiration Detalls

[o[+]Jafe]2]s]
BalanceShaetData|3|1 |0 GI |2|0IDI4|

Date Month Year

Registration No.

Il.  Capital Raised during the Year (Amount in Rs. thousands)
e Public Issue
N T T4
Bonus Issue

L InfeJef-T-]

i, Position of Mobilisation and Deployment of Funds {Amount in Rs. thousands)

Teial Liabilities
Lelefrfr Je]s[ ] 7]

Sources of Funds
Paid up Capital

[s]s]e[s[ofo]2]

Secured Loans

(z2]a]efe]afe[o]2]
Application of Funds
Net Fixed Asseats

[2]2]e[1 [i]e2]5]

\_jv Net Current Assets

Lisl7]¢[7Jo]2T5]

V. Performance ol the Company (Amount in Rs. thousands)

Turnover
[lz][s]ef7]3] 5]
Profit Betore Tax
Lo 2fefe]s]eo]5]
Earning per Share (RAs.)
(L [0 [ T-Tos]

V. Generic Names of Three Principal Products / Services of the Company
Item Code No. {ITC Code)

[olofafr1Jef2f1TooTo]
[ofof2e[ e[ ToJo]o]
[elo]s[t]os[aTe]o]a]

State Cods

Right Issue
CL-Infr -7
Privale Placement

L Inp o[-

Total Assets

[slafr[r [s]sli]7]

Reserves & Surplus

[b]2f1]7fsTe]1]

Invastmeants

[ [efofofofee]

Misc. Expenditure

Lltfofefe]s ]}

Total Expenditure
[ Is]*]a]o] 8] o o]
Prafit Alfter Tax
[Olzle [ [s [5 17]

Dividand Rate%

EEDEEE

Pruduct Description
Luirfe[a] T 1]

(A[w]M[oTN] T a]

lelafrf TT [ ]




OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED

AEPORT OF THE AUDITORS TO THE
BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF OSWAL
CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ON

THE CONSOLIDATED  FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS OF GSWAL CHEMICALS &
FERTILIZEAS LIMITED AND TS
SUBSIDIARIES

1.

We have audiled the attached
consclidated balance sheet of Oswal
Chemicals & Fertillzers Limited (*The
Company”) and its subsidiaries as at
31st March, 2004, the cansolidated
profit and loss account for the year
endad on that date annexed ihareto,
and the consolidated cash flow
statement for the year ended on that
data (hereinafter referred to as
“Consclidated Financial Statements™),
which we have signed under reference
to this report. These consolidated
financial statements are the
responsibility ol the Cempany's
management. Our responsibility is to
express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements
based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance
with auditing standards generalty
accapied in India. Those Standards
require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements
are prepared, in all material respects,
in accordance with an identilied
financizl reporting framework and are
free of matarial misstatements. An
audit includes examining on a test
nasis, evidence supporting tha
amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also
includes assessing the accounting
principies used and significant
estimates made by management, as
well as evaluating the overall financial
statements presentation. We belleve
that cur audit providas a reasonable
basis for our opinien.

We did not audit the financial
statements of the subsidiaries, whose
financial statements reflect total assets
of Rs.105.79 Lacs.{ Previous year Rs.
99.67 Lacs.) as at 31st March, 2004
and total revenues of Rs.2.65 Lacs {
Previous yaar Rs.Nil L.acs.)or the year
ended on that data. Thasa financiai
statements have been audited by other
auditors whose reports have been
furnished to us, and our opinion,
insolar as it relates to the amounts
included in respect of these
subsidiarias, is based solely on the
repart of the other auditors. However,
appropriate material adjustments for
the current year, to the extent

5.1

ascertainable have been made to
financig! statemants of the subsidiaries
to bring them in line with the
accounting policies followed by the
parant company.

We report that the consolidaled
financial statements have been
preparad by the company in
accordance with the raquirements of
Accounting Standard 21, Consolidated
Financial Statements, issued by the
Institute of Chartared Acceuntants of
India and on the basis of the separate
audited financial statements of Oswal
Chemicals & Fertilizers Limited and
its subsidiaries, included in the
conscligated financial statements.

On the basis of the information and
explanations given lo us and an
considaration of the separate audit
reports on individual audited financial
statemants of Oswal Chemicals &
Fertilizars Limited and its subsidiaries,
in our opinion, the consalidated
financial statemenis together with the
nates therecn and atlached therelo
read with nole 26 on schedule XX
regarding the preparation of these
accounts on 4 going concarn basis,
and subject lo our comments
in paragraphs 5.1 to 57 below, give

respectively, & trve and fair
visw in conformily  with  the
acceunting  principles  genarally

acceplad in lndia:

in the case of the consolidated balance
sheet, of the consalidaled state of
affairs of Oswal Chemicals & Fertilizers
Limited and its subsidiaries as a1 31st
March, 2004,;

in the case of the consolidated profit
and loss account, of the consolidated
results of operations of Oswal Chemicals
& Ferlilizers Limilted and its
subsidiaries for the year ended on thai
date,; and

in the case of the consclidated cash
flow statemant. of the cansolidated
cash flows of Oswai Chamicals &
Fertilizers Limited and its subsidiaries
for the year ended on that date,

Non-pravision of disputad income tax
demands., including  demands
partaining lo assassment year 1995-
96, 1998-89, 1999-2000, 2000-2001
& 2001-82 amounting o As. 1,935.03
iacs (net of provision), as stated in note
5(a} & (b) on schedule XXII.

Non-provisian of import pass lees
amounting fo As. 42.85 lacs on
indusirial alcohol as stated in nole 4
(iii) on schedule XXI,

28

5.3

54

CISWAL
A

Non-ascerainment and non-provisicn
of doubtful debts, if any, out of debls
outstanding for mora than six months.

Nole 9 on scheduie XXl regarding
non-reconciliations of accounls with
the suppliers of DAP division and
inlgrest payable o arstwhile
debanture/bond holders and paymants
made to them basad only on their
claims.

5.5 Nola 7 on schedule XXIi regarding non-

5.6

Place: New Delhi
Dated: 30 July, 2004

pravision of subsidy refund dug lo
downward ravision of retention price
comtested by the Company n:né recovery
of which has bheen stayed by the
Hon'ble Dsthi High Courl, estimated
to ba As. 21,768.92 Iacs. the ultimate
ifability of which could not be readily
ascertained.

Note 20 on schedule XXil regarding

issuance of preferance shares for
As.2,188 lacs and cenversion of
interest into funded interast lerm foan
amounting to Rs 12,562.99 lacs
pursuant to a Deb! Rastructuring
Schema for secured loans of DAP
division as approved by the Corporate
Dab! Restructuring Celf being subject
to reconciiiation/conlirmation by the
lenders.

Managerial Remuneration amounting
to As.112.771 lacs paid te directors,
which is subjact o appraval of Gentral
Government as stated in note 11¢b} of
Schedula XXII.

We further repart that ! without
considering our commaNIss in
paragraphs 5.4 10 5.6 abova tha impact
of which we are unable to quantify
and our commenls in paragraph 8.7
above being a legal matler and after
considaring adjusiments arising an
account of our comments in paragraphs
5.1 to 5.2 above, to the extent
quantifiable, would rasull in the loss
before tax of As.28,2582.87 lacs as
against Rs. 28,240.02 lacs and loss
after tax of As.30,319.86 lacs as
against As. 28,341.98 lacs as shown
in the Profit and Loss Accouni,
Consequantly, net current assets would
change to Rs. 60,499.38 lacs as
against Rs. 62,477.26 lacs and dabil
balance in profit and loss account
would change {0 Bs, 58,831.98 facs
as egains! Rs. 56,854.10 lacs as
shown in the Bafance Shest.

Anupam Dhewan
Partner

Membershin No. F0B4451
For and on behalf of
Prica Waterhousa
Charternd Accountants
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Cg;nsolidated Balance sheet as at 31 March, 2004

PARTICULARS Schedule No.  As at 31.03.2004 Asg at 31.03.2003
{As. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)

SOURCES OF FUNDS

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

Capital 1 49,580.88 49,680.88

Reserves & Surplus 1 54,662.84 54,662.84
104,343 72 104.343.78

Mingrity Intarest 1.05 1.49

b .

Loan_Fiwnds

Secured Loans H 249,036.02 242,302.84 -

Unsecured Loan-Long Term From Cthers 93.15 87.25
249,129.17 242,350.09
353,473.94 346,735.30

Application Of Funds

Fixed Assals

Gross Block w 369,661.18 368,218.59

Less: Depreciation 147,615.53 130,248.37

Net Blaock 222,045.85 237,970.22

Capital Work In Progress 6,072.65 5,489.58
228,118.30 243,459.80

fnvesiments v 4.978.17 - 5,197.45

Deferred Tax Asset (Nat) Vi - 101.96

Current Assets, Loans & Advances

Inventories wvil 39,661,82 40,390.67

Sundry Debtors wvill 47,105.36 46,318.27

Cash & Bank Balances 4 2,740.20 2,075.28

Loans ‘& Advances X 3592.29 4.115.61

i 93,099.67 92,903.83

Le"é-sfturrent Liabillties & Provisions

Current Liabilitias X 29,323.85 24,096.19

Provisions X 1,298.56 913.26

30,622.41 25,009.45

Net Current Assets 62,477.26 67,894.38

Miscellangous Expenditure

(To the extert not written off or adjusted}

Deterred Revenue Expenditure 1,0456.11 1,569.16

{Note 10 on schaduia XX11}

Profit & Loss Acoount 56,854.10 28,512.55
353,473.94 346,735.30

Noles to the Consolidated Accounts XX

This is the Consofidated Balance Sheet
referred to in our report of even date

Anupam Dhawean

Partner

Membership No. F 084451
For and on Behalf of
Price Waterhouse
Chartered Accountants
Place: New Delhi

Dated: 30 July, 2004

H.K. Gupta
Company
Secratary

SPAva
GM (Finance)

The schedules referred to above form an integral
Part of the Consolidated Balance Sheat

For and on behalf of the Board

Anil Brella Rargan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Director Finance Chaimman & Managng
Director Director



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CBWAL
Consolidated Profit & Loss Account X
+

For the Year Ended 31 March 2004

PARTICULARS Schedule No. For the year For the year
Ended on 31.03.2004 Ended cn 31.03.2003
Income (Rs. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs)
Sates (Nole 8 on schedule XXI1) 120,884.36 124,575.53
Other Income X 2.191.5¢ 1,149,96
123,075.95 125,725.49
Expeanditure
Aaw Material Consumption XV 45,894.20 5%,770.19
Other Manulacturing Expenses XV 34,187.57 _28 ,348.49
Employees' Cost XVl 3,018.25 50086
Selling Expenses XV 12,164.77 9,8090.42
Finance Expenses X 30,278.94 35,510.43
Depraciation 17,545.01 18,843.03
Administration Expenses XIX 4,070.30 4,123.33
Adjustments due 1o (Increase)/ Decrease in
Steck of Finished Goods and Work In Progress XX 3,467.50 {10,514.83)
150,606.54 159,390.92
Loss beiore Prior Pariod Adjustments and Taxation (27.530.59) (33,665.43}
Prior Period Adjustments XH 709.43 1,026.12
Loss befare Tax Expense (28,240.02} (34,691.55)
Tax Expense
-Deferred Tax Asset (Note 15 on schedule XXII) - (12,634.94)
-Deferred Tax Asset (Net } of earlier year written off
{Note 15 on schedulg XXiI) 101.96
Loss after Tax Expense (28,341.98) {22,056.61)
Less: Minority Interest 0.43 1.05
(28,341.55) (22,055.58)
Loss brought farward from Pravious Year (26.512.55) (64@6759)
Balance Carried to Balance Shest (56,854.10) {28,512.55)
Earning Per Share (Nominal value of Rs.10 gach)
Basic / Diluted (Note 22 on Schedule XXil) {Rs.) {11.04) (8.59)

MNotes to the Consalidated Accounts XX

This is the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account
referted to in our report of even date

Anupam Dhawan H.K. Gupta SPAva Anil Bhalla
Partner Compary GM {Finance} Ciractor
MembershipNo. F 084451 Secretary

For and on Behalf of

Price Waterhouse

Chartered Accountanis

Place: New Oelhi
Dated: 30th Juty, 2004

The schedules referred to above form an integral
Part of the Consolidated Profit & Loss Account

For and on behalf of the board

Ranjan Shama
Finance
Directer

Aphey Oswal
Chairman & Managing
Director



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED ISWAL
-j,; CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FQR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2004

Year Endad Yaer Ended
March 31, 2004 March 31, 2003
Amount Amount
(Rs. inlacs) (Rs. in tacs)
A. CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Mot loss betora Lx 28240.02) (34,691.55)
Adustnents for: N
Depreciation 1758672 1884300
Finance Exponso 3058290 3550062
Intorast Income (404.10) (184.36)
(ProfillLoss on saloiwrile off of Fixed Assets/CWIP i< Lt 313
Doterred revorua expendiiure written off 62305 52305
Loss {Profit) onsala of Investment Writlan olf 1254 -
Uahility no longer requlrad written back {663.81) {195.64)
TDSon Rent - 7.3
Unraalised Foreign Exchangs Fluctuation (65.95) 322.96
Provigundwiite off for bad & doubtiu! dobts/advances 13438 18,84
Provition lot Gratity & Loave Encashmant P 33.08
Prowvisibn for Imventory lor obsoletsy dar. ~ed slock - 238.41
Prior Period Expansas/{incoma)} (Not) 36a52 1,026.11
Woualtth Tax Provision 17ar 470
Oparating protit bators working eaplis chang 20,6031 21,434.66
Adqustments for changes in ang capital
- {Increaso)VDecreass in Sundry Desdtors (787.09) 1§,59%9.88
- (Inerease)VDocreasa In Qiher Recoivables ¥ra {143.39}
- {IncroasalDecrkase in Invenlories T28.84 (7.328.87)
- Increase/(Docrease) in Trade and Other Payables 5.180.05 7.914.52)
- Incraasel{Decrease) in Net Cumrant Assels 5,498.00 429710
Cash gencralod Irom dparations 2635831 25851.76
- Prior Period (Expansasyincome {Nat) (35852) (Ba2.70)
- Waahh Tax Paid {4.70} (4263
- Taxes Refund 3421 7824
Hot cash irom operating sctivities 26,300.30 24,843.04
B, Cosh flaw from tnvesting octivitles;
Purchasa cHixad assets [3.445.75) {1.702.34)
Proceeds from Sale of fxad assets 36606 10.16
{Purchase¥Sela of invesimants 108.74 (22.50)
Intarasi Racehod {Revenua) 7900 16128
Mot eash used In investing activities (2.593.88) {1,552.46)
C. Ceah llow from financing ectivitles:
Progeeds from Unsecured Loans. 525 (13.38)
Proceecs from long term bormowings 165695 121659
Repayrnis of long term bomowings {+2.511.53) (@559.01)
Proceeds (Repaymanta ffram short tarm bamowings/cash crodit (4.880.78) 564700
Finance Expenso Paid {7.320.20§ (24.781.82)
Dévdand Paid 021 (24.43)
Nat cash usod In finzneing activitios (23,05052) (24.515.62)
Net increasef{Dacraasn) in Cash & Cash Equivalants H64.02 (1,225.96)
h and cash oquivalents as at 31.03.2003 207528 3,301.26
and Bank balances 207528 330124
Canh and tash oquiveients x3 at 31.00.2004 274020 plugy ]
Ceahand Bank balancos 274020 2,075.23
Notes:
i Tha above Cash flow staterr e wder tha ir 0d Setout in AS-3 issued by the institute of Charared Accountants of Indk.
2 Figuresinbrackmsindicata cash outgo,
3 Cash and cash squivalents Inciudes balances with the scheduled bank under dividend payable aecounts. Rs. 41.26 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 41.28 lacs) and Rs 2321.18 ( Previous Yaar Rs.
12@.72:;“mmmmummmwmm(mmmmm)mu pos: ) Nch 2re not avadable
for usa by the Company )

4 Foliowing non cash transactions have not been considared in the cash flow statamenl,
- Tax deducted al sourca (on income) Rs.30.75 Lacs { Pravious Yoas Rs.46.75 Lacs)
- Imarest on long tenm koans amounting Rs. NIL ( Previous year Fis. 1,04 Lacs} adjustad kgainst the procesds fom kans.

Thigis Iho Cash Flow ralfared 1o in our report of even dats, Naies to Accounts {Schadule XX|1) forms anintegral pan of the Cash Flow Statament

For and on beha'f of the board

Anupam Ohawan H.K Gupta SPArya Anil Bhalla Ranjan Sharma Abhey Oswal
Partner Compary GM (Finance) Directar Finance Chaiman & Managing
Membership No. F 084451 Secratary Director Director

Forand on Behalf of

Price Waterhouse

Chartered Accountants

Place: New Dethi

Dated: 30th July, 2004

3i



OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED CJEWAL
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES TO AGCOUNTS ‘[
R4
Schedule [ As At 31.02.2004  As At 31.03.2003
(Rs.in Lacs) (Rs.in Lacs)
Share Capital {Note On schedu) i}
Authorised:
375,000,000 (Previous Year 325,000,000} Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each 37.500.00 32,506.00
27,500,000 {Previous Year 27,500,000}
Redeemable Preference Shares of As.100/-each 27.500.00 27,500.00
12,500,000 {Previous Year Nil} Zero Percant Opticna) Convertible
Preference Shares of Rs.100/-each 12.500.00 -
77.500.00 - 60,000.00
issued & Subscribed :
256,808,759 (Previous Year 256,808,759)
Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each fully paid up 25,680.88 2%5,680.88
s
24,000,000 {Previous Year 24,000,000} 10%Redaemable Non Cumulative
Preference Shares of As.100 each, fully paid up, redeemable on the
expiry of 15 years from the date of allotment i.e. 31st Qctober 2001 24.000.00 24,000.00
49,680.88 49,680.88
Schedule 1|
Regerves rpbu:
Debenture Redemption Reserve * 4,549.94 4,545.94
Share Premium Account 44,252 90 44,252.90
Capital Redemption Reserve 5,860.00 5,860.00
TOTAL 54,662.84 54,662.84
* Note 25 on Schedule XXHI
Schedule I
Secyred Loans (Note 14 and 20 schedule XX
A.Debentures
{I} 13,00,000{Previcus Year 11,00,000) 19.5%
Secured Non-Convertible Redeemnable Debentures
ol Rs.100/- each Fully Paid up Outstanding \
Amount Rs.7 14 each (Previous Year Rs.24.89 gach) 78.48 _,\2_35.91
) 80,00,000 (Previous Year BO,00,000) - 16% Secured Non-Convertible )
Redeemable Cebentures Of Rs.100/- gach Fuily Paid Up Outstanding
Amount Rs.100 each (Previous Year Rs 100/ eachj . 8.000.00 8,000.00
mn  18,75,000(Previous Year 18,75,000) 15.5% Secured Non-Convertible
Redeemable Debentures of Rs. 100/- sach Fully Paid up Outstanding Amount
RAs. 100/- aach (Previous Year Rs. 100/- each) 1,875.00 1,875.00
W) 3,39,00,000 (Previcus Year 3,39,00,000) - 14.031% (Previous Year 16.031%)
Secured Non-Convertible Redeemnabls Debenture of Rs. 300/- each Fully Paid Up
Ouistanding’ Amount Rs. 100/- each {Previous Year Rs. 100/- each) 33.900.00 33,900.00
Interest Accrued And Due 2,781.32 4.337.08
B. Term Loans:
{) RUPEETERMLOANS
-From Financial Institutions 96,421 56 78,372.27
-From Banks 57,865.54 51,795.34
Interest Accrued And Due
- On Term Loans from financial Institution 10.08 9,531.21
- Cn Term Leans from Banks - 200.52
C. Working Capital Loans - Frorn Banks 38,180.89 43,171.67
- From Others 2,600.00 3,500.00
Interest Accrued And Due
- On Working Capital Loan from Banks 18.39
- On Working Capital Loan from cthers - 90.34
D. {interest Free Loan From The Pradeshiya Industrial & Investment
Corperation of Uttar Pradesh Limited (PICUP) 7.274.76 7,254.52
__249.036.02 242,302.84
Conid....... on paga no. 33
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OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED GieWAL

Conf..... rom page ne. 32
Holag:-

1. DCobanturas and lorm (oans are securnd by mortgage on whole of the maveble propertias save and except book debts of tha Compary subject Io chargos creatadte be created in favour
of the Company’s bankors for working capital requirements. Thess are funthar sscurad by a joint morgaga craatedto be created in lavour of all the financial nstitutions and banks
by woy of deposil of tha tiths deeds with respact Io Lhe Company's immovablo proparlies (othor than a3 refarrad 10 in nota 2 balow). .

2 Torm loans aggregaling 1o As. 2410 1acs (provious yaar R3.2410.43 lacs) irom a bank are further sacured by mongage by way of depasit of Lille desds ofimmovable propariss al vilage
Balagarh, Districi Dowas, Madhya Pradesh,

A D are al parin 28 quartartyi below
A) +8.5% Secured Radeamabie Mon Convartible Debentures of Rs. 100 sach commanced from November 15, 1957,
B) 16% Socurad Aodeomabla Non Comvariible Debenturas of Rs. 100 each commiencing fram Decambar 15, 2003,

[o}] 15.50% Socured Redosmabla Noa Comvartibie D« f Rs 100 each 5 December 15, 2003
[¢}] 14.031% SacurecF Non G ibla Dy  Re. 100 each ing from January 15, 2006 "

4, Working capi W from banks and socurod by first charge by way of hypolhacation of tha wholo of ihe cunem assets and book debts of the Company. Thesa ara furthor
$ocured by asecond charge by way of 2 jolnt mongagsin favour of all tha londars for g capial requilt ¥ way of deposit of the tite deeds with aspect Lo the Company's

immgvabla proportias (other than as relerred toin note 2 abova).
LS The above laars, other than working capilal ioans from others, ara guarenieed bry the Managing Director.
[:3 Leoans from PICUP is secured by sacond charga on the movabh [ i tha fartiizsr plant of the Company and shafl rnk pari passu with

the chil

Schedule-V

{Nate 4(i){a), 4(i){b) on Schedule XXII)

Fixed Assets {Rs.in Lacs}

Grosy Block Deproclation Nat Block

Particulary As at  Addition/Ad|u- SaletAd]ust - As at up to For the  Writien Back/ up As at Ay a1

01042003  siment during smeni during 31.00.2004 01.04,2003 Your Adjusted  21.03,2004  31.03.2004 31.03.2003
the yeer tha year Curing the yoor

Goodwil) on consalkintion 0.07 - - 097 . - B - 0.07 o7

Lond .

-Loasenold ~ 1.005.78 - - 1,005.78 6883 10.20 - 7303 92875 820.95

-Fraohold ar2.s7 - - re.sr [11:+] - - - 372.57 72.57

-Siio Davolopmant B.46673 - - 6.4565.73 152 62 7641 - 229.23 8.237.50 83130

Bulkdings

-Loasehakd 3068 . - 30,69 1.70 0.45 - 215 5 2898

«Friahoks ** 20.571.34 303.05 30.38 20,644.00 461810 929.87 B35 552611 1530482 1585324

Plani & Machinery 325,908.83 23N 1,209.12 A27.077.02 11414428 1594342 20178 120.885.94 187,191.08  217.762.55

Plant & Mochinery -

held Jor disposal *** 9.837.25 . - 5,837.25 887017 320.84 - 215101 646,24 867.08

Machinary Sparos 1.008.44 " a5 - 1,008.85 223.036 8142 - 304.78 7047 7508

Fumilure & Flxmure 80574 pav 168 N33 565.32 5038 124 Tidde 190.87 240.42

Wahiciey 211318 : - 2.9 210477 1,503.79 173.73 7.70 1,668.82 434.95 B09.37

Al ! 1 59214 1,249.5! 63,1 1. AR3? 1 .7 19, 147 615, 22204565 237.970.22 -
i 363.927.84 4,458,989 17811 36821852 11142475 18,843.03 1941 130,248.37
Capital Work In Progross 6.072.65 5.483.58
TORAL 228.118.30 243459 8¢

" includes land amounting to Rs. 8.07 lacs {Provious Yeor Rs@.07 lacs) located at Paradeap, and Rs, 0.82 lacs ( Previous Year fis. 0,92 iacs) Locatsd at Mandidaep, the L aase Deed in
raspect ot which i yor t ba oxecuted and alsc Includes 7 acres land earmarkod lor construction of 8 hosplta by Anuna Abhay Oswal Trust.

= Inctudos Raftway Sidings, cosling Rs 527.64 lacs (Previous Yoar Hs 527,64 lacs) nol localed on Company’s land.
Nat real valuo basod 's estimalg is mara Ihan the book valuo, hence valuedat thair book vatus.

Capilal Werk in Prograaa Includes Capital Advanco Rs.491.14 Lacs { Pravious Year Rs.496.31 Lacs)

Schedule V As At 31.02.2004  As At 31.03.2003
(Rs.in Lacs) {Rs.in Lacs)

IVESTMENTS - LONG TERM-NON_TRADE (Notes 6 b)_ol hedule XX

A.Quoted (Long Termn)
tn Equity Shares (Fully Paid Up)
152000 éF'ravious Year 152000) Equity Shares Of

Rs.10/- Each Of Nashville Investment & Trading Co. Ltd. 13.81 13.81
500000 (Previous Year 500000) Equity Shares Of Monnet

industries Lid Of Rs.10/-Each al a premium G Rs.30/-Each - 200.00
8424849 {Previcus Year B424B849) Equity Shares

Of Rs.10/- Each Of Oswal Agro Mills Ltd 4,926.15 4,926.15

160000 {Previous Year 160000) Equity Shares

Of Rs.10/- Each Of Oswal Agro Furane Ltd . 3.28
1000¢ Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each of Appu Impex Ltd. 0.28 0.29
1440000Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each of Progessive 26.2% 26.25
Commerciai Enterprises Lid.

IDDGUEqng Shares of Rs.10/-each of Alliance Techno 102 1.0
Projects Ltd.

80500 Equity Shares of Rs.10/-each of Lucky Star Entertainment Lid. 291 2.91
Share Applicaticn Money 7.50 E 7.50

Contd........ on pags no. 34
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r

As At 31.03.2004

N
As At 31.03,2003

(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in lacs)
B. Government Securities:
Unquoted:-
In Govt. Securities 7 Years Nationa! Plan
Saving Certfiicate (Lodged
with Govt.Authorities) 0.2t 1.21
C.Others - Unquoted
D.UTI variable Investment Scheme-Unquoted -
4,978.17 5,197.45
Aggregate Book Value
Quoted Investments 497817 w5,181.24
Unqueoted Investments - A5 sa21
Schedule Vi
Deferred Tax Asseti(Liability) (Met)_{Note 15 _on schedule XX}
Brought Forward 101.96 (12,532.98)
During the year :
Add: Deferred Tax Assets
Carry forward Losses . {95.97)
Upabsorbed Depreciation ‘ 8,436.11
QOther Timing Cifterence . 7.664.17
Less: Defarred Tax Llabillty
Fixed Assels . 3.574.85
Detferred Revenue Expenditure - - (205.48)
Less: Deferred Tax Asset written off 101.96 P
Carrled Forward - 101.96
*Reter Note 15 on schedule XXt
Schedule Vi
INVENTORIES
7205 (Previous Year 10932 )Equity Shares of Rs.10/-
Each in Oswal Agro Mills Ltd. 1.48 2.25
Raw Matarials 6066.47 3,985.01
Work In Progress 3,626.42 1.653.26
Finished Goods 23,022.22 2)3_.;92.88
Stores & Spares {Including In Transit Rs. 386.74 Lacs- 5,044 86 1306.84
Previous Year Rs.51.48 Lacs)
Loose Tools 0.37 043
39.661.82 40,350.67
Schedule Vil
Sun Deb onsidered
Over Six Months .
Secured 13.07 17.42
Unsecured 12,548.39 22,853.488
Cthers :
Secured 119.67 54.03
Unsecured 34.424.23 2339294
47,105.36 46.318.27
Schedule IX
Cas k_Balance
Cash & Cheques In Hand tncluding Pustage Imprest 208,75 169.89
Balances With Scheduled Banks
Current Accounts 32.54 42.28
Dividend Accounts( Refer schedule XI) * 41.26 41.26
Fixed Daposi ** 2,321.36 1,740.92
Margin Money 12.50 52.00
Employea Security Deposit-Fixed Depasit 2,72 27.22
Employee Security Deposit-Saving Bank Account 1.07 1.71
2.740G.26 2,075.28

** Pledged against Bank Guarantees and Letlers of Credils Rs.2321.16 Lacs (Previous Year Rs.1269.72 Lacs)

MU
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CONgOLIDATED SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS
Schéadule X As At 31.03.2004  As At 31.03.2003
(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in lacs)
%] v ote 1 19 ol hed X1l
(Unsecured and Considered Good Unless Otherwise Stated)
Advances Recoverable In Cash or in
kind or for value ta be received 3182.19 3570.07
Less: Provision for Doubtful Advances 139.23 3,042.96 £65.56 3,504.51
Inigrest Accrued but not dug on Depasits 58.25 63.99
Balance With Central Excise Etg. 15.29 0.01
Saecurity Deposits 475.79 55110
359229 — 41961
Schedule JXI
Currant Ll-\ap tles ( Note 9 on schedule XXII)
Sundry Cregitors
1) Total outstanding dues of Small Scale Industria) Underiakings 1.68 20.54
i) Total oulstanding dues of Creditors Other Than
Small Scale Industrial Undertakings 15,776.56 12,236.34
Defatred Income 2.628.81 1,869.11
Provision for Zero Coupon Optionally Convertible Preference Shares 2,185.95 -
Advances frorn Customers 1,539.49 1,169.09
Other Liabilities 2,759.44 2,867.41
Investors Education & Protection Fund
(Appropriate amount shalt be transferred to “Investor
Education and Protection Fund” If and when due)
-Unpaid Dividends {refer schedule 1X) - 41.50 41.7%
-Unpaid Application Maney - 9.78
-Unpaid Matured Debenture & Interast Due thereon 13.29 253.53
Interest accrued but not due 437713 5,528.68
29,323.85 ,096.19
Schedule XII
Provigions
Gratui 266.31 208.70
Leave With Wagas 123.51 $2.55
Weallh Tax 17.97 4.70
Current Tax (Net of Advance Tax Rs 654.84 Lacs Pravious Year Rs.367.09 Lacs)
] 1,298.56 913.26
' Unt;:s‘r"RecnnciILation
Schedule XN For The Year For The Year
Ended Ended
on 31.03.2004 on 31.3.2003
(Rs.in lacs) (Rs.in lacs)
Other Incame
Profit on Sale of Assets 7.62 192
Interest Concession Received - 185.86
Interest on Fixed Deposils - Gross (TDS Rs.30.75 Lacs 404.10 184.36
Pravious Year Rs.38.81 Lacs)
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation a52.08 -
Miscellanecus Income 758.08 582.18
Provision no longer required written back 668.81 195.64
2,191.59 1,149.96
Schedule XIV
Raw Materlal Consumption
Opening Stack 3,865.01 5,407.59
Add: Purchases 47.995.66 58,327.61
51,960.67 63,735.20
Less: Closing Stock 6,066.47 3,865.01
4589420 TE5,770.19
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CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULES TO ACCOUNTS | 4
Schadule XV For The Year For The Year
Endad . Ended
on 31.03.2004 on 31.3.2003
- {Rs. in Lacs) {Rs. in Lacs)

1 Ma n &
Stores Consumed * 5,272.20 . 5,516.90
Packing Material Consumed 2,565.43 3,008.79
Power & Fuel 25,066.27 18,022.69
Others 516.96 146.73
Repairs - Builging 27.89 ga12
- Machinery 606.34 585.98
- Qthers 112.48 §2.98
3416757 T28,348.48
* Excluding Charged tc other Revenue Heads Rs 133.95 Lacs }7

( Previous Year Rs. 356.41 Lacs)

Schedule XVi

Employees’ Cost (Note 18 on schedufe XXII)

Salaries, Wages, Bonus and other Allowances 2,721.91 3,123.16

Contribution to Provident Fund & Employees State Insurance 144.81 158.74

Waellare Expenses 151.53 218.96
3,018.25 3,500.86

Schedule XVII

Selllng_Expenses

Fraight & Handling Charges 9,705.64 12,874.71

Rebate & Discounts 471.83 319.73

Commission - 9.63

Cther Sefling Expenses 1.987.30 6,605.35
12,164.77 16.809.42

Schedule XVIll

Finance Expenses
Intergst - On Fixed Loans . 17,910.45 At 14741
- On Debentures 7.382.74 "313.57
- On Others 4.632.93 5,808.28
Bank Charges 342.82 541.09
—30,278.94 35,510.43
Schedule XiIX
Administration Expenses (Note 18 op schedule XXiI}
Rent §8.72 161.71
Rales & Taxes 88.40 123,40
Insurance 775.29 996,75
Foreign Exchange Fluctuation - 267.58
Loss on Sala/Writeolf of Assets B42.09 5.05
Other General Expenses 1,618.37 1788.53
Provision for Obsolate Stores - 238.41
Dad DebtAdvances Written OffProvided 134.38 18.84
Miscellaneous Expenditure Written off 523.05 $23.05

4123.33

4.070.3¢
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CONEOLIDATED SCHEDULES TQ ACCOUNTS

Schédule XX For The Year For The Year
Ended Ended

on 31.03.2004 on 31.3.2003

{As. in Lacs) (Rs. in Lacs}

due tolncrease)/Decrease in

ock of Finis de and Work i e

Opening Stock

Finished Goods 28,462.88 16,976.74
Stack - In ~ Process 1,653.26 2,624.57
Shares held as Stack in Trade 1.48 2.25
30,117.62 19,603.56
Less: Cios'(;g Stock
Finished Gobds 23,022.22 28,462.88
Stock - In - Process 3.626.42 1,653.26
Shares held as Stock in Trade 1.48 225
26.,650.12 30,118.38
3,467.50 (10.514.83)
Schedule XXI
Prior Pericd Adjustments
Other General Expenses 344.34 312.90
Miscellangous Income (1.18) (27.18)
Rates & Taxes 15.34 748.39
Dapreciation Written Back - {7.99)
Depreciation 41.71 -
Interast . 308.20 -
709.43 1,026.12

SCHEDULE XXIY
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED ACCOUNTS

Mrihod of Consolidation

TWmlidahd financial statemants comprisa ol financial stataments of Oswal Chemicals & Fertilizars Limited (tha Comparny} and the Association of Persons (AOPs) Lndar its conirol
namely Sagar Comporation. Univarsal Associatos end Shanenjula Associate {hereinafiar rafprmd ta as “tho Group™), all registered In India nl':el afiminaton of intar group transactions

andbalancas. The Company controls 85%, 91% and 88% respectively in gach of the A intion of P (AOPs). Th wava baen peapaned by the

Company in nccordancu wilh the requiremeni of An:uunﬂng Slandard 21 \ssued by ICA\ Invesimenl mada by AQPs in tho Eqully Shams of the Gcmunny nan been ulnmmaled mh
inthe share o withyg of! as

statementa,

Significant Accounting Policies:
4. Accounting Convention

Tha lInandul ctatemenis are pre L ion on accrual basis in with |hg ¥y acoounting read with hotlas
F quiraments of tha C: s Act, 1956,

b. Fixed Assaty and Depreclation

All tho tixed £3s5ts are statad at cost less secumulated deprecialion, Cosl includes all incidental axpenditure nel of MODYATICENVAT wherevar applicable. The Company provides
far daprecintion as lollaws:

I} Urea Divisicn

Urea angd Power Gengration plants: On the basis of lechnica! evaluation of the usoeful life. gly. Ihe Company 9 25% on Written Down Value
WDV} of tha #is5ets. The olhar assata are dapraciated on WDV basis at the rates providod in Schndulu XIV to the Companiea Act, 1956,

i) LOPE diviglon

Plani and Machinery at the rates detarmined on the basts ol tachnological re-evaluation of tha usehl hfc othe plant fram the dato tha aesols ware pul 1o usa attor modification/
aeklitions, Accordingly, deprociation is being provided €& 35 % on WDV of thy . The other w WOV basis al the rates provided in Schadule XIV
i lho Companies Acl, 1956.

E) Di-Ammonium Phosphata (DAP) Division

Process Plant & Machinery on Straighl Line Maihod (SLK} basis al the rates provided i Schedulu XIV le the Companias Act applicabla to continuous procass plant as per
lechnical evaluzlion. Marna matarial handling equipment lease hold land ovar the period o lease. Pipes 4 litings, uiu:mu.lindallm storago
lanks ara depracialed on SLM basis at tha mies pravidad in Schadule X1V to the Companias Act, 1956 applk fo general plant & ous

plant. Rallway siding at 20% per annum. Tha clhar assata are doprociated on WDY basis &t the rales pmwdad in Schedula XIV tothe Compar\lcsAci 19586,

Other Dlvisions
‘On SLM basia atthe rates provided in Schedule XIV 1o tha Companios Acl, 1556,

LY
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5 (%)

vl oL Prem|

L premiumimp s bei : 1ho pariod ol laass.
vl} Caplta) Epares
Capital sparas are boing dapreciatod over the balance usetul lives ol ths relaled pant and machinery.
¢ tnvestmaonts

L]

P

Long tarm [nwesimenis are sialed at cosi loss Pprovision, il any, for diminution in value ol such investments other than lemporary, Curanl invesimants are stared al lowar of cost

and fair valus.
d. Inventorles

Raw materials, compononts, finlaned goods, workin prograss and Sloros & Spuros ara vated al cosl or net reqli
DAP isinclusivg of the Ratention Price Conceaslon as nolified by the Government of india. Tha basis al determining cos! for vanous calagoties of invenlGres is &S lolkows:

i} Storasand Spares, Raw materials and Packing materiats Waighted avarage cost
li}  Work in Progress and Finished Goods Malarial cast plus 2poroprale sharo of labour and preduction ovarhaads
i) Siockin Trade in AOPs Atcostor nat realisoble value whighever iz lower

e. Rovenus Recognition

Snles are recognised upen the Iranster of significant riska and rawards ofownership tolha customers. Concession on Urea undor Group Pricing Scheme is iex-gnised as par
; o o i e i

able value, whichever is lowar, Realisabla valus of Uron and

the price notfied by Government ol ncia and s sutiact ONinputs A5 and when nottied. E Treig
onits acerual. Concession on DAPNP is recognised At provisional ratas notifiad by Gowt. of (ndia wihich are subiact o rovision based on & study canfed out by Govt. of (ndia.

Income from invastments and Intarest are accounted tor on accrug basis.
1 Farelgn Exchange Transactions

Transactons in foreign curiency ore reoorded a1the exchanga rates prevating ae ihe dates of the irAnsactions axcept for Qoods in transit and related liabilitiss, which ara statad

al (hs gxchangs rate prevailing al Ihe year and. Liability in respact of imparted matorials ramaining unpaid are stated at the a1change ralos provailing st the yaar end.

In cage of Forvard Exchange Conlracss, the ditarance batween the anward rte and the axchange rale at the date of L is
& Loss Accourd over Lhe lils of tho contract.

g. Retiremonts Banafits

grized as currency on in tho Profit

12 provident fund schiare is chargad 1o the prolt and 1685 acooun! 28 incursd. Liability lor gratuity and lopve Ncashmentis provided on the basis of aciupnial valuation

Contritwrion.
carrigd oul al the year end,
h. Borrowing Costs

Barrowing costs tath isiion or af quafifing amp ks aspan‘ofmgoos(armﬂtassermmmda(ewfmnsm!ameuammnwbrinmndad
usa. Other g ch £3 2N Bxpansa in Lhe yaar in which they ane incurred.
I Toxstlon

Current Lax is datamined as the amount of tax payablsin tespect of Laxatle incoma for the period. Deferrad tax is recogised, subjsct 10 considarations o prudenco, on liming

dilferences, being the dittarence batween laxabla income And aceounlingincome ihal cnginale in one period and are capable of ravarsal in cna or more subsaquent pariods.
I Miscellanoous Expenditure-Daterred Revenue Expenditure

Preperative Expenditure incLrad by the Company upto 1o date of comr of i not directly attributable 1o fixed assets is trealed 65 Celerrad Revenua

Expenditure ta be written GH over & period of thres to five years,
Estimatad amount of Gontracts remaining to ba oxeculad on capital actounl and not provided for {nel ol advances) Rs,725.25 lacs {Pravious Year R$.1190.36 lacs),

Contingent Lizbfities not provided for in respect of © {Rs.in Lacs)
Year ended March 31, 2004 Yoar vndadMamh\:shzooa
(i} a) Land rel lilnd by Foe o jon (excluding intarest) B4.80 iw
b) Disputed cost of mator vehicla purchased [: 1o e} .00
£) Eleciricity duty on captive ganeration ol powes at Paradosp dispuied by the Company 921,66 mw
d} Demands/shaw cause noticoa received from Sales Tax dspartment. 36965 Amouni not quantifiable

o) Dwmand recatved for water charges d:sputed by the company. 38852
f} Oemand recaived for Entry Tax in Orissa 527.3¢ 52739
Gl Demand for minimumn guaranteed wharage, disputed by the Company. 101848 408.12

h) Guslom Duty on Raw Material importad for DAP Unit is subjuct Lo final assessment by the

Custom Authorilies. Amount nol quantiiabie Amourt nol quartiztie
i} Othar claima agains! thg Company notacknowledged nx debts 145854 1274.43

(i} With & view to encoumage selting up o tertzizor planta in tha country, tw Governmend of Indi has baan toowing & policy of granting the tacitty of duty rea impor of plant and
required for satting up the lartlizar plants. The Company has importad cartain equipment for $0lting up lerilizer planls at Shahjshanpur and Paradeep and has furmishod undartakings
to cusloms puthoritles at the lime of ctearance of g . Tholiability, I any, waulkd ba i the linal rgconcifialion by customs aulhorities.

(i) Tho Govemment had leviod animport Pass Fes amounting to Rs 42,85 acs ter impont et industrial alcohol in the Stata of Wast Bengat. Tha Company has chalienged tha lavy and

the matar is currantly pending in tho Caicutta High Court. The managemeni 1 of tha view that 1o pravisians meed to be miits, as tha mattar is subjudice.

Tha incomo Tax Dy has d ised damands AMoUNIng 10 As.3411.17 lacs lor assessmant years 1998-99, 1999-00, 2000-01 & 2001-02. No

provision haa besn mada for tha sama since the Company has bean legally advised Ihat these demands are not suslainable and has filed nppasls bafora appropnato authorities.

Further, assassmant year 2602-03 involves cerainissuer ingluding thoss which era $imildr in nature for which has boan during tha year,

(&} Furthar, the Incoma Tax Dapartmen Teoponad the assessmen lor ssessmant yaar 1995-96 on tho basis of A Statamenl by one of the Magchinary suppliers ol he Company bafore
the sstiiement commission and raised & demand for R.217 67 lacs 2gainst which the Compony has filed an appeal with the appropriate autherity. No provision has beer madg for

iha inca, in tha ooink the- demand s nol sustainahls.

(5]

beon raisad by the (neoma Tax Depit. for the assessment yoars {98869 to 1990-99 EQainst which appeals aie pencing betore ITAT Mumbal.

Incoma Tax A ot AOPs has been upto he year2001-02. Dsmands lor an aggregate amount of R.33.38 Iacs (Previous Yaar Rs,33,38 lacs) have

£ {8} lavasimens (Schadule V) Include sguity shines in Oswal Agro Mils Limited {DAML) smouniing Jo Bs.4926.15 laca, The marke! valua of thosa invastmants as atMarch 31, 2004
stands a1 Rs.122.18 lacs. Howaver, the market valus ol the property/i ts halkd by QAML is s highgr 1han their cost and tharotora the break up value of these aquity
shaies is higher nan the cos1 f acquisiion of such shares. The ciminution in viths of this investment is considared temparary and accordingly no provision is considerad nacessary

in this fegard.

{b) Market valus ol quoted invastments atihe close of the your was Rs.2873.30lacs (Previous Year Rs 3338.3% lacs).

m
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T A,;«rwmrd rawtalon In rolmtlon pricn!ol T &nd 8™ pricing porods ended on March 31, 2003 waa natified by the Government of India {GOI} vide notilication dated Septembar 13, 2002
and IApnl 10, 2003 due toil of policy ragulting In a rafund of an asiimaled amount of Ra.21,786.92 laca. The Gompany has anslor lited a wril petition against
1hEGOI belore tha Hon'ble Delhi High Courl contesting the basis adopled for calculation & retention price and obtadnod o atay against the recovary from tha Hon'bla Delhi High Courl and
hars accordingly nol provided lor the aforesaid refund. Tho Company has bean lagally advisod that there will not be any material lizbility on the Company,

8 Salesinclude: {Rs.in Lacs)
‘Year andad March 31, 2004 Yoar ended March 3%, 2003
Concession on Uraa (including armears fos Earier Years Ry, 2934.17 tacs 2542094 1524556
- Prewvious Year nat of rocovery Rs.541.06 Lacs)
Equated Fraight on Uron (Including arrears for Pravious Yoars Nitlacs 266352 4210.15
- Previous Year Ra. 623.58 lacs}).
Concaession on DAP / NP 14267.72 15822.97

9. Adatailod axsrciss I In progress to raconcila varous accounts (both debil and credit) the aggrogata nat debi balanca baing Rs, 114,44 lacs wilth suppliers of lho DAP Division. Adjustmenita,
ilany, amlngfmmthusn oxerclses, which are nal likoly 10 ba matenial, will be accountad far on complation of the samae.

A simitar i reise i being for tha Interest payabike to e sasiwhil Panding of tha the company
has paid R.s'.259.07 Izcs during the yaar to certain debanturehokders based on claims recelved (rom them.
10. Py DAP Division and tothe Bruvity is being writtan off over a perod of 3-9 years tho o f
i.e. 1 April, ﬁ)ﬂl as per cotails given batow:
(Ra.in Lacs)
‘Year andod March 21, 2004 Yoar ended March 31, 2003
Batance brought forward 1569.16 2221
Less : Written oft during the yoar 523.05 52305
Total Toss1 0
11.  Dirsctors’ Remunamilon : (AsinLacs)
Yesr andeg March 31, 2004 Yoar encled March 31, 2000
Salary & allowances 5400 5400
Contribution to Provident Fund 648 643
Parquisites b 4508
Sitting Fees 280 21
Tetad 115.51 100.44
Notes @ (a)  Provisionds for grituily and keave socashment have been made on a group basis ond separate fiqures Eni k ars not available and therafora have
nol beon considarad in the above figures.
(b} Theabove remunaration other than $iting fee ks subject ko approval of Central Government.
12, Loans and advancaa as givon in Schadite X Include ; (Rs.in Lacs)
As at March 31, 2004 Asn gl March 31,2063
Maximum Amount dua from Diraclars and Secratary at any limo during the year 155 023
13 Auditors’ Remuneration : (Ps. Lacs)
(e Az al March 31, 2004 Asat March 31,2003
AudiFea 2100 1500
Certlication work £00 300
QOther Services 900 BOO
Qut of Pocket Expensos {including sarvices 1ax) Ba7 565
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Tha amount ol U.P. Trada Tox on Urea colkectad during the parod 1.3,2003 10 28.2.2004 amounting to Fis. 180,18 lacs [Pravicus Ysar As.1216.59 lacs) has been converted Imo Imarest
Frea Loan as per Agroomant pxscuted with Tha Pradeshiya Industrial & Investmant Carporation of Liar Pradash Limilad (PICUP). Tha said toan is repayable onthe expiry of
Tva years from tho yoar of collection. Tha U.P. Trade Tax collsctad during March, 2004 amounting to As.17.76 lacs (Frovious Yaar Rs.17.63 lacs), ponding conversion inte imarest
Frae Loan’ is Included under the head "Currem Liabdilies”.

tnview of d kostes and p ha Company has written off doferred tax asset {net) ol Rs.101.96 lacs brought torward from previous year and has Atso not

rocognized additional datered tax ml (nel) {or tha yoat.

Financial Institutions hiwe an option ta convert a parl of Lhair tarm loans/debentures amourting to As.34711.41 lacs (Previous Yaar As8.33000.56 kx¢3) into oquity shares of the

& arry Lima cring this curroncy of lean. Additionally, financial institutions. also have @ dgiit o convert their loans/detenturgs amounting o Rs, 12806436 lacs {Pravious Year As. 102482.80

lacs) in the even! ol doloull s slip in tha rasp: loan

g s,

The Company and othar consumers of natural gaa on Tha HBJ pipgling have been informod by Gas Authority of India Lid, Ihat prices of natural gas boing suppliad to the Company may
berevised w.e.l. 1.4.2000. Thara is als0 2 possibllity of levy of excise duty and central salas Lax on natural gas. The guantum of these liabilities is unasconainabla and adaditonal costa,
itany, are reimbursable to the Company oy the Governmani of (ndia under ratenton prica schame for Urea,

Empioyea oos1 (Scheduto XVI) and Administrative expensas {Schedule XIX) are net of Rs.249.43 lacs baing estmated emount of axpenses incunad on bahall of & group comperry which
hava subssquently boan reimbursad to tha Sompany.

Loans and advances (Schodule X) inchudes Rs.50 tacs being amount of cash seizad during the year by the income Tax authorities under Section 52 of the (ncome Tax A2, 1961, The
comparry has appilad I¢ the appropriate autharity for releasa of the cash seized.

The Debt Rastructuring Scheme for secured loans of DA Division of the Company has been approved by the Corpornle Debt Restructuring Cel and afl lenders, cthar than Unfi Trust
ol India, subject to compliance ol cerlain tarms and conditiona including the issue of Zero Percent Optionally F Shares for the murestraut(fur
The entire tenura of lerm loans) by the fi HInslit imated 1o ba Rs.10.851 lacs. Pending confirmation of tha amourit frgen larwiors, the Company

for Rs.2.166 lacs, baing tha net prosent vatua &3 on 19 Agdl, 2003 ol the amount ol intares! reduction for the year anded 31* March, 2004 requirad to be compansaled in tha above mannar,
Panding issua of Pratorenca Shares, this amount has boon included under curiant Habllies (Schedute X1). Further, tho funded inlerest amount has basn converied te Funded Inleras!
Tarm Loan amounting to Rs, 12,569.99 lacs as par tha said Schamg by some landers, which is pend.mg confimmation/raconciiiation.

Schedute X inchudas Ry, Nil (Previous Year Rs 218.05 lacs) foraign

m of iprward g &t the year end.
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2. Eaming Per Shara (EPS) — Numerators and Denominalors used to calculate basic and diluted eamings par share:

Loss attributable to Equity Shareholders (Rs.)(A}

Basic/Wsighted average ol Equity-shares outstanding during tha vear (B}

Nominal Valye of Equity Shares {Rs.)
Basic/Diluted Earning per shara {Rs.) (A)/{B)

‘Year ended March 31,2004
28341 54,958

Note : None of the potential aquity shares have dilutive affect during the current year.

23 Related Party Disclosures.

(A}  Relaled parties and transactions with them as identilied by the management are givan below:

{a}  MajorShareholders

Mr. Abhey Oswal alang with relatives and olher associates helds 54.21% sharas of Ihe Company.

{b)  KeyManagement Personnal and their relativas:
Mz, Anil Bhaila
Mr. Ranjan Sharma

Mrs. Poonam Sharma {Wife of Mr. Ranjan Sharma}

25,68,08,750
0
[+1.04y

{c)  Ememprises over which Major Shareholders, Kay Management Personnel and their refatives have significant influence:-
Cswal Agro Mills Limited, Star Advertising Pt Limited, Aruna Abhey Oswal Trust, Lucky Slar Entertainment Limited, Atul Properties Limited.

(B)  Transacligns with Relalad Fartiss in the ardinary courss of business.

Type of Relationship
B} Major Shareholders

b) Kay Management
Personnal & their relatives

- ) Entarprises over which major shareholders and key
Managament Personnel have significant influence

Balances outstanding at yaar end

a) Major Sharaholders

b) Enlerprises aver which major shareholders
have significant influence

Unsecured loans
Brockin Trade

24 The Company is opsraling mainly undsr a single segmani i.a. “Fertilizars”, comprising of Uraa and Di-ammaonium phesphate. Although the Company has cartain ol units which
ame closed, he value of assets and lizbilities of these unitsis not significant and therefors hare is ne reportable sagment in terms of the provisions of AS 17 “Segment Fteu&ﬂg’l

by the Institute of Chartarad Accountants of India.

R

Nature of Transactions

Managerial Remuneration
Profit/(Loss) in AOPs

Managerial Remuneralion
Rant paid

Rant paid

Services availed

Paymants made by Company on their bahalf
Their share of common axpensas.

Funds Raceved by Company

Paymants racaived by Company on Lheir bahalf
Paymenls made on behall of Company
Adjustment of funds recehvad

Unsecured loan received{repaid)

Interast paid

Minority Inlarest
- Investments

- Receivable
- Payable

No amount has been tr ta Dabenture R ion Reserve in view of losses during the year.

26.  Afthough tha DAR plant has been incurring cash losses, ramedial siaps have been taken by the managemant by way of

o) increasing the capacity utilization levals,

by increasing the markat shara, aspecially in view of beiter monsoon,

¢} restiugturing the long tem loans and
dy reducing the interast eosl.

Accorctingly, the accounts have been preparad on & going concem basis

27 Previous year's figures have baen ra-groupedre-arranged wherever necessary to conform to the current year's prasentation.

Signatures to schadules 1 1o XX!i of consolidaied account

HEK. Gupta
Place: New Delhi Company
Date: 30" Juty, 2004 Secratary

SP. Aya Athey Oswal
GM({Finance} Chaimgan &
Managihg Director

Anil Bhalla
Dirgctor

(Rs.in acs)

Year ended Maich 31, 2003
2,20,55,80,622
25,68,08,75%

o

(B.59)

2

(Rs. in Lacs)
¥elume of Transactions
2003-04 2002-03
3526
007
7145
1080
1200 1200
1690 38246
11871 25725
24045 -
31359 495507
a54 0
11.68 029
- S0575
5% {13.35)
515 945
Q17 002
4826.15 4926.16
36.54 -
fale<] -
315 B
148 225

ssued

For and On behalf of the Board

Ranjan Sharma
Finance
Director



DISWAL

ATTENDANCE SLIP
OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED
Registered Office :
Village Piprola, Jalalabad Road, Shahjahanpur - 242 001 {U.P.}
(PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND T OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL. }

Namae of the attending Sharehclder / Proxy Regd. Falio No.
(in block letters)

No, of Shaggs held DF 1D No. / Clients ID No.

| hereby recerd my presence at the TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Company, being held on
Wednesday, the 25th August, 2004 AT 11.00 a.m. at Company's Registered Office at Village Piprola, Jalalabad Road,
Shahjahanpur - 242 001 (U.P.)

(SIGNA'FUFIE QF PROXY HOLDER} - (SIGNATURE OF SHAREHOLDERY)

NOTE: Shareholder / Proxy is requested to bring the Attendance Slip with him/her when they come 1o the meeting. No
attendance slip will be issued at the time of meeting.

For Office Use

FROXY FORM

OSWAL CHEMICALS & FERTILIZERS LIMITED
Registered Office :
. Village Piprola, Jalalabad Road, Shahjahanpur - 242 001 (U.P.)
(PL‘EfiSE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HANDHT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING HALL.)

Folio NO, «s---emm e No. of Sharas held ------—m-srreesrmrrennnan
1We of

being 2 member/members of OSWAL CHEMICALS &
FERTILIZERS LIMITED hereby appoint of
or failing him/her of

as my / our proxy to vote for me /us and on my / our behalf at the TWENTY SECOND ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the
Company to be held on Wednesday, the 25th August, 2004 and at any adjournment thereci.

Signed -r-oeecseene oo For Oswal Chemicals & Fenuizers Ltd. RA“i:.'
) e 1/-
Dated oo Revene
Stamp

NOTE :

1. The form should be signed across the stamp as per specimen signature registered with the Company

2. The Companies Act, 1956 lays down that the instrument appointing a proxy shall be deposiled at the Registered Office of the
Company not less than FORTY EIGHT HOURS before the time fixed for hofding the meating.

3. Aproxy need not be a Shareholder of the Company.
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